
AGENDA PAPERS FOR
PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date: Thursday, 12 May 2016

Time:  6.30 pm

Place:  Committee Suite, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford, Manchester 
M32 0TH

AGENDA  ITEM

1. ATTENDANCES  

To note attendances, including Officers and any apologies for absence.

2. MINUTES  

To receive and, if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 14th April, 2016. 2

3. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REPORT  

To consider a report of the Head of Planning and Development, to be tabled 
at the meeting.

4. APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION TO DEVELOP ETC.  

To consider the attached reports of the Head of Planning and Development.  4

5. SECTION 106 AND CIL UPDATE: OCTOBER 2015 - MARCH 2016  

To note the attached report of the Head of Strategic Growth. 5

6. PROPOSED STOPPING UP OF HIGHWAY AT FOOTWAY ADJACENT TO 
THE FORMER ALTRINCHAM GENERAL HOSPITAL AT ALTRINCHAM 
WA14 1PE  

To consider the attached report of the Director of Growth and Regulatory 
Services. 6

Public Document Pack



Planning Development Control Committee - Thursday, 12 May 2016

7. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)  

Any other item or items which by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be considered 
at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

THERESA GRANT
Chief Executive

Membership of the Committee

Councillors Mrs. V. Ward (Chairman), D. Bunting (Vice-Chairman), Dr. K. Barclay, 
N. Evans, T. Fishwick, P. Gratrix, D. Hopps, E. Malik, D. O'Sullivan, Mrs J. Reilly, 
J. Smith, L. Walsh and M. Whetton

Further Information
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact:

Michelle Cody, Democratic & Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 0161 912 2775
Email: michelle.cody@trafford.gov.uk 

This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 3 May 2016 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford 
M32 0TH

Any person wishing to photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting are requested 
to inform Democratic Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for 
the meeting. 

Please contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if 
you intend to do this or have any queries. 



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

14th APRIL, 2016

PRESENT: 

Councillor Mrs. Ward (In the Chair), 
Councillors Dr. Barclay, Bunting, N. Evans, Fishwick, Gratrix, Hopps, Malik, O’Sullivan, 
Smith, Walsh and Whetton. 

In attendance:  Head of Planning and Development (Mrs. R. Coley), 
Planning and Development Manager – South Area (Mrs. S. Lowes), 
Planning and Development Officer (Mr. G. Davies), 
Principal Highways & Traffic Engineer (Amey) (Mr. J. Morley), 
Director of Legal & Democratic Services (Ms. J. le Fevre), 
Democratic & Scrutiny Officer (Miss M. Cody). 

Also present: Councillors Coupe, Lally and Mrs. Young.

APOLOGY

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs. Reilly. 

MRS. SARAH LOWES

The Chairman on behalf of the Committee welcomed Mrs. Sarah Lowes, Planning and 
Development Manager – South Area, to the Planning Committee meeting. 

71. MINUTES 

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10th March, 2016, be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

72. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REPORT 

The Head of Planning and Development submitted a report informing Members of 
additional information received regarding applications for planning permission to be 
determined by the Committee. 

RESOLVED:  That the report be received and noted. 

73. APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION TO DEVELOP ETC.

(a) Permission granted subject to standard conditions prescribed by statute, if any, and 
to any other conditions now determined 

Application No., Name of
Applicant, Address or Site

Description

87208/FUL/15 – Event City Ltd – Use of land as overspill car park. 

Agenda Item 2



Planning Development Control Committee
14th April, 2016

___________________________________________________________________________________

Former Containerbase, Barton 
Dock Road, Trafford Park. 

87490/ADV/16 – GG Hospitality – 
Old Trafford Supporters Club, 99 
Sir Matt Busby Way, Stretford. 

Advertisement consent for the display of 5no. 
LED digital display signage.

74. APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS 86755/RES/15 – NIKAL 
LIMITED AND HILLCREST HOMES (1985) LIMITED – LAND AT OAKFIELD 
ROAD/MOSS LANE, ALTRINCHAM 

The Head of Planning and Development submitted a report concerning an application for 
the approval of reserved matters for demolition of the existing ATS building and erection 
of 59 residential apartments (class C3) along with ground and lower ground floor 
retail/commercial/leisure uses (use class A1, A3, A4, A5, B1 and D2) and a temporary 
car park approved under outline planning permission 86661/VAR/15.

RESOLVED:  That the Council is minded to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of a Legal Agreement relating to application 86661/VAR/15 and 
subject to the conditions now determined, with the following amendment to 
Condition 5:- 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order 1987, (as amended) and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) or any equivalent Order 
following the amendment, revocation and re-enactment thereof, Units 1 and 2 at 
lower ground and ground floor of the premises shall only be used as 
retail/commercial uses (use class A1, A3, A4, A5, B1 and D2) and for no other 
purposes within any Class of the above Order.

Reason: In accordance with the outline permission, having regard to residential 
amenity and to ensure adequate parking provision having regard to Policies L4 and 
L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

75. APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 86852/FUL/15 – SARAKA LTD – 112-
114 ASHLEY ROAD, HALE

 
The Head of Planning and Development submitted a report concerning an application for 
planning permission for proposed basement and ground floor rear extension. New shop 
front with sliding panels.

RESOLVED:  That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now 
determined and to the following additional condition:- 

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans and the requirements of 
Condition 2 of this permission, the screen on the boundary between the application 
site and no. 110 Ashley Road shall project no further than 1.9m beyond the existing 
rear elevation of the building; be constructed in a material which allows light to 
pass through it and be retained thereafter.



Planning Development Control Committee
14th April, 2016

___________________________________________________________________________________

Reason: In the interest of residential amenity and in compliance with Policy L7 of 
the Trafford Core Strategy.

76. APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 87271/FUL/15 – BRANLEY HOMES 
LTD – SITE OF FORMER FLIXTON RAILWAY STATION, FLIXTON ROAD, FLIXTON

[Note:  Councillor Coupe declared a Personal Interest in Application 87271/FUL/15, 
being a Governor at St. Michael’s School. 

Councillor Evans declared a Personal Interest in Application 87271/FUL/15, as he owns 
two properties opposite the site (24 and 26 Carrington Road).] 

The Head of Planning and Development submitted a report concerning an application for 
planning permission for residential development of the former Flixton Railway Station 
proposing 24no. two bedroom apartments with associated parking, external works and 
alterations to existing vehicular access. Landscaping throughout including a proposed 
wooded area.

It was moved and seconded that planning permission be granted. 

The motion was put to the vote and declared lost. 

RESOLVED: That planning permission be refused for the reasons now determined. 

77. APPLICATION FOR VARIATION - 87416/VAR/16 - MOTOR FUEL GROUP – 155 
STOCKPORT ROAD, TIMPERLEY

The Head of Planning and Development submitted a report concerning an application for 
variation of Condition 4 on planning permission H31453  (Demolition of existing buildings 
and canopy and redevelopment of site to provide new sales building, canopy, petrol 
storage tanks, jetwash and replacement substation. Closure of Access) to alter the 
opening hours from 7.00-24.00 to 5.00-24.00.

RESOLVED:  That permission be granted subject to the conditions now determined 
and to the following amendment to Condition 3:- 

The use of the premises between the hours of 0500 and 0700 shall be restricted to 
the use of the shop, ATM and forecourt pumps only. For the avoidance of doubt no 
deliveries of petrol or other goods or use of car washing or maintenance facilities 
shall take place between these hours. 

Reason: In the interest of amenity in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core 
Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

78. APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION - 87433/FUL/16 - NOTEMACHINE UK 
LTD – 155 STOCKPORT ROAD, TIMPERLEY

The Head of Planning and Development submitted a report concerning an application for 



Planning Development Control Committee
14th April, 2016

___________________________________________________________________________________

planning permission for the retention of ATM to the side of the shop. Associated works 
include retention of anti-ram bollards.

RESOLVED:  That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now 
determined and to the following amendment to Condition 2:- 

The Automatic Teller Machine shall only be available for use during those hours 
which the shop premises is open and shall be taken out of service outside of these 
hours. A notice shall be placed on site, adjacent to the ATM, advertising the hours 
of use and this shall be permanently retained as such.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity having regard to Policy L7 of the 
Trafford Core Strategy.

  The meeting commenced at 6.30 p.m. and concluded at 7.49 p.m. 



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 12th MAY 2016 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION TO DEVELOP, ETC. 

PURPOSE
To consider applications for planning permission and related matters to be 
determined by the Committee. 

RECOMMENDATIONS
As set out in the individual reports attached. Planning conditions referenced in reports 
are substantially in the form in which they will appear in the decision notice. Correction 
of typographical errors and minor drafting revisions which do not alter the thrust or 
purpose of the condition may take place before the decision notice is issued.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None unless specified in an individual report. 

STAFFING IMPLICATIONS
None unless specified in an individual report. 

PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
None unless specified in an individual report. 

Further information from: Planning Services 
Proper Officer for the purposes of the L.G.A. 1972, s.100D (Background papers): 
Head of Planning and Development 

Background Papers: 
In preparing the reports on this agenda the following documents have been used: 

1. The Trafford Local Plan: Core Strategy.
2. The GM Joint Waste Development Plan Document.
3. The GM Joint Minerals Development Plan Document.
4. The Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (2006).
5. Supplementary Planning Documents specifically referred to in the reports. 
6. Government advice (National Planning Policy Framework, Circulars, practice guidance 

etc.). 
7. The application file (as per the number at the head of each report). 
8. The forms, plans, committee reports and decisions as appropriate for the historic 

applications specifically referred to in the reports. 
9. Any additional information specifically referred to in each report. 

These Background Documents are available for inspection at Planning and Building 
Control, 1st Floor, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford, Manchester M32 0TH. 

Agenda Item 4



TRAFFORD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 12th May 2016

Report of the Head of Planning and Development 

INDEX OF APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION TO DEVELOPMENT etc. 
PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR DECISION BY THE COMMITTEE

Applications for Planning Permission 

Application Site Address/Location of 
Development Ward Page Recommendation

86854 59 Northenden Road, Sale,
M33 2DG Sale Moor 1 Grant

87573
Urmston Grammar School,
Newton Road, Urmston,
M41 5UG

Urmston 10 Grant

87720 24 Sunnybank Road, Bowdon,
WA14 3PW Bowdon 17 Grant

87733 Bowfell House, 104 Bowfell 
Road, Urmston, M41 5RR Flixton 24 Grant

87818 13 Campbell Road, Sale,
M33 4AP Brooklands 38 Grant

87954 11 - 13 School Road, Sale,
M33 7XY Priory 44 Grant

http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=86854/HHA/15
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=86854/HHA/15
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87573/FUL/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87573/FUL/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87720/HHA/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87720/HHA/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87733/FUL/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87733/FUL/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87818/HHA/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87818/HHA/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87954/FUL/16
http://planningdocs.trafford.gov.uk/pamsearch/planning_application_search_pam.jsp?APPLICATION_NUMBER=%3cxsl:value-of%20select=87954/FUL/16


 

 
 

WARD: Sale Moor 
 

86854/HHA/15 DEPARTURE: No 

 

Erection of two storey front, side and rear extension to create additional living 
accommodation, including raising the ridge height. 

 
59 Northenden Road, Sale, M33 2DG 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Saggar 
AGENT:  Tang and Associates Ltd 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT 
 
Councillor Freeman has called in the application on the grounds that he 
considers the proposal will dwarf the adjoining property and affect the amenities 
of 57 Northenden Road. 
 
SITE 
 
The application concerns a 2 storey detached dwelling house on the north east side of 
Northenden Road close to the junctions with Derbyshire Road and Cheltenham Drive. 
Surrounding the site are other detached dwellings and opposite on the south west side 
of Northenden Road are several blocks of flats. To the south east and rear of the site 
planning permission exists for the redevelopment of the site with 11 apartments 
(contained within 1 apartment block) and 7 houses, and that permission is currently 
being implemented. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The proposal is to increase the height of the building to create third floor loft 
accommodation, to erect front side and rear extensions at first floor and alterations to 
the ground floor foyer area. This would represent an increase in the size of the property 
from a three bedroom dwelling to a five bedroom dwelling. The extensions will be 
constructed of brick and render for the walls to match existing and roof tiles to match the 
existing. The maximum height of the building would be 11m and the height to eaves 
5.8m.  
 
The increase in floor space of the proposed development would be approximately 135 
m2. 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
For the purposes of this application, the Development Plan in Trafford 
Comprises: 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 1



 

 
 

• The Trafford Core Strategy, adopted 25th January 2012; The Trafford Core 
Strategy is the first of Trafford’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
development plan documents to be adopted by the Council; it partially supersedes 
the Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), see Appendix 5 of the Core 
Strategy. 

 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT CORE STRATEGY POLICIES 
L4 Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
L7 Design 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 
 
The DCLG published the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 
2012. The NPPF will be referred to as appropriate in the report. 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE (NPPG) 
 
DCLG published the National Planning Practice Guidance on 6th March 2014, which 
replaced a number of practice guidance documents. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
76886/COU/2011 Change of use from private dwellinghouse to mixed use comprising 
dwellinghouse and use of existing swimming pool and changing facilities for private 
swimming tuition for up to 6 no. pupils at a time, with use of existing driveway for 
associated car parking.  Lessons to take place between the hours of 09:30-19:30 
Monday to Friday and 09:30-16:00 on Saturdays. – Refused 13/7/11 
 
H/68097 Demolition of existing garage and erection of a two storey side and front 
extension to form additional living accommodation - Refused 29/11/07 
 
H/28497 Erection of single storey side and rear extension to form study, kitchen, dining 
room and lounge - Approved 17.1.89 
 
APPLICANT’S SUBMISSION 
 
The applicant has submitted the following information in support of this application: 
 
CIL form 
Inspection and Assessment in relation to bats and breeding birds. 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 
None 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 2



 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Four letters of objection have been received including one from a Councillor:-  

 
 Overdevelopment. 
 Will dwarf adjoining property. 
 Loss of light and general overshadowing. 
 Overlooking and loss of privacy. 
 Traffic problem, noise, pollution and dust during building works. 

OBSERVATIONS 
 
DESIGN AND VISUAL AMENITY 
 
1. One of the 12 core planning principles of the NPPF is to always seek to secure 

high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 
occupants of land and buildings (paragraph 17).  Paragraph 56 of the NPPF states 
that the Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 
environment - good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people.  Paragraph 64 of the NPPF states that permission should be 
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available 
for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 

 
2. Policy L7 of the Core Strategy states that in considering applications for 

development within the Borough, the Council will determine whether or not the 
proposed development meets the standards set in national guidelines and the 
requirements of Policy L7.  The relevant extracts of Policy L7 require that 
development is appropriate in its context; makes best use of opportunities to 
improve the character and quality of an area by appropriately addressing scale, 
density, height, layout, elevation treatment, materials, landscaping; and is 
compatible with the surrounding area. 

 
3. SPD4 – A Guide for Designing House Extensions and Alterations (February 2012) 

gives more detailed advice in respect of house extensions. It indicates (Para. 
2.1.2) that when considering an application for a domestic extension or alteration, 
the Council will take these general principles into account:  

- the design of the proposal in relation to the original dwelling  
- the effect of the extension on the character and appearance of the surrounding 
area, including trees and landscaping  
- the impact of the proposal upon the amenities of neighbouring properties and 
the surrounding area, and that developments do not themselves suffer from a 
poor level of amenity,  
- the adequacy of the parking provision surrounding the extended property  
- the adequacy of the private garden for an extended property  
- sustainable design  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 3



 

 
 

 
4. The maximum height of the proposed building would increase from 7.2m to 11m 

and the height to eaves would increase from 5m to 5.8m. No. 61 extends to a ridge 
height of 11.5m and No 57 to 10m. It is considered the extended building would 
step down in height between Nos 57 and 61 and would more appropriately reflect 
the height and massing of the neighbouring properties than the existing building. 

 
5. The design of the proposed building would also reflect the design and materials of 

the existing building and No. 57 and would therefore be acceptable in terms of the 
visual appearance and character of the street scene. It is therefore considered to 
be in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy in this respect. 

 
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
6. One of the 12 core planning principles of the NPPF is to always seek to secure 

high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 
occupants of land and buildings (paragraph 17).   

 
7. Policy L7 of the Core Strategy states that in relation to matters of amenity 

protection development must not prejudice the amenity of future occupiers of the 
development and/or occupants of adjacent properties by reason of overbearing, 
overshadowing, overlooking, visual intrusion, noise or disturbance, odour or in any 
other way. 

 
8. SPD4 – A Guide for Designing House Extensions and Alterations (February 2012) 

advises that (Para 3.4.1). All rear extensions should avoid overshadowing, 
physically dominating or overlooking neighbouring dwellings. Large extensions 
which restrict light to a large part of a neighbouring garden for sitting out and/or 
which block light to the habitable rooms of a neighbouring dwelling will not be 
considered acceptable. Paragraph 3.4.2 indicates the most common situation 
where harm may be caused to the neighbouring property is in the instance of 
terraced and semi-detached properties however these guidelines also apply to 
detached properties. Normally, a single storey rear extension close to the 
boundary should not project more than 3m from the rear elevation of semi- 
detached and terraced properties and 4m for detached properties and a two storey 
extension. If the extension is set away from the boundary by more than 15cm, this 
projection can be increased by an amount equal to the extra distance from the side 
boundary (e.g, if an extension is 1m from the side boundary, the projection may be 
increased to 4m for a semi-detached or terraced extension. Paragraph 3.4.3 
advises that 2 storey rear extensions should not project more than 1.5m close to a 
shared boundary but with similar provisions to those for single storey extensions if 
the extension is set away from the boundary. 

 
9. In relation to No. 61 the ground floor would be no closer to the common boundary 

with that property. The proposed first floor extensions would be between 3m and 
4m closer to the boundary and a minimum distance of 1m from the boundary. Both 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 4



 

 
 

No. 59 and No. 61 are built at an angle to the boundary and at the position where 
No. 59 is at 1m from the boundary, No. 61 would be at a minimum total distance of 
5m from the extended building. The extension would also project approximately 
2.9m further to the rear at first floor level. No. 61 is divided into two flats and 
objections have been received from the occupiers of both of these properties. 
There is a large ground floor side bay main habitable room window and first and 
second floor clear glazed main habitable room windows in the side elevation of No. 
61. Notwithstanding the fact that these windows are already facing a two storey 
wall at between 8m and 9m away, the reduction of this distance to between 5m 
and 6m together with the increase in roof pitch and eaves and ridge height and the 
increased projection to the rear of the extension will have some impact on the 
ground floor window (although the upper floor windows will have more light and 
outlook). However, it is considered that it would be unreasonable for the presence 
of a window facing into a neighbour’s boundary at a distance of less than 4m to 
unduly restrict development on that adjacent site and, given the separation 
distance in this case and the fact that the window is already facing a two storey 
wall, it is considered, on balance, that the proposed extension would not have so 
detrimental an impact on the amenity of these properties as to justify the refusal of 
the application.  A first floor ensuite bathroom window is proposed on the side 
elevation facing No. 61 and this would need to be conditioned to be obscure 
glazed and non-opening up to 1.7m above floor level. 

 
10. In relation to No. 57 the ground floor would remain unchanged. The first floor 

would project approximately 2.9m further to the rear and approximately 2m beyond 
the single storey rear extension of No. 57 and 6m beyond the original rear 
elevation of No. 57.The extension would be positioned approximately 1.4m from 
the boundary and approximately 3.2m from the side elevation of no. 57. In line with 
paragraph 3.4.3 of SPD4 a two storey extension would normally be allowed to 
project 2.5m at a distance of 1m from the boundary. In terms of the distance that 
the extension would be projecting to the rear of No.57’s single storey extension, 
the proposal would therefore be in accordance with this guidance. Although there 
are 2 roof lights in the roof of No. 57’s single storey rear extension, the same room 
is served by glass doors to the rear garden and therefore it is not considered that 
there would be any unacceptable impact on this room. In respect of the impact on 
the first floor main habitable room window in the original rear elevation of No. 57, 
given that the extension would project approximately 6m to the rear of this at a 
distance of approximately 3.2m from the side of No. 57, it is considered that the 
impact would be no greater than that of a permitted development single storey 
extension, which could project 3m immediately on the boundary adjacent to a 
neighbour’s ground floor window.  In terms of impact on the garden of no. 57, as 
the extension would only project about 2m beyond the neighbour’s single storey 
extension, this is also considered to be acceptable in relation to the SPD4 
guidelines. It is therefore considered that this proposed first floor extension would 
not have an undue impact on the amenity enjoyed by the occupiers of No.57.  
Alterations are proposed to the first floor windows on the side elevation facing 
No.57, which will serve two ensuite bathrooms and it is therefore considered that 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 5



 

 
 

these would need to be conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening up to 
1.7m above floor level. An amendment has also been made to a bedroom window 
at the rear. It is now angled parallel to the boundary to remove the issue of 
overlooking. 

 
PARKING 
 

11. Trafford Core strategy’s parking standards require 3 parking spaces to be provided 
for a dwelling with four plus bedrooms in this location. Although the existing 
garage/gym will be lost there will remain adequate parking for 3 vehicles at the 
front of the dwelling and it is therefore considered that the proposed development 
will not have an undue impact in terms of on-street parking. 

 
ECOLOGY 
 
12. In relation to bats the submitted survey advises there are no specific 

recommendations or additional surveys, but if at any time bats are encountered 
then as a legal requirement work should immediately cease and a bat ecologist 
contacted for further advice. 
 

13. If plans are amended and any future scheme includes work to the attached single 
storey building which incorporates the recreational pool, the survey recommends 
that a precautionary approach is adopted whereby a licensed bat ecologist is 
present to supervise the areas identified as offering minor bat roost potential will 
be affected. 

 
14. It is recommended in the survey that if any trees or shrub are proposed for 

removal, it should be undertaken outside of the breeding season of birds (March - 
August) unless it can be conclusively established, by an ecologist, that nesting 
birds are absent. All wild birds (with only minor exceptions) and their nests whilst 
being built or containing eggs or dependant young are protected under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 

 
15. It is recommended that the advice given in the survey is added as an informative 

to any approval of the application. 
 

OTHER ISSUES 
 

16. Noise and disturbance during building works can be controlled by other legislation 
and is not a matter that would be given significant weight in the determination of 
the application. 

 
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
17. This proposal is subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and is located 

in the moderate zone for residential development, consequently extensions of over 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 6



 

 
 

100 square metres to private market houses will be liable to a CIL charge rate of 
£40 per square metre in line with Trafford’s CIL charging schedule and revised 
SPD1: Planning Obligations (2014).  

 
CONCLUSION 
 
18. It is considered that the proposed development would be acceptable in terms of 

visual amenity and parking provision and, although there would be some limited 
impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties, it is considered that these 
impacts would not be so severe as to justify refusal of the application. It is 
therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with Policy L7 
of the Trafford Core Strategy and guidance in the NPPF and therefore the 
application is recommended for approval.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission. 
 
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers  9141/101 
and 9141/001 Rev  B, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To clarify the permission, having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core 
Strategy. 
 

3. The materials used in any exterior work shall be of a similar appearance to those 
used in the construction of the exterior of the existing building.    
 
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual 
amenity in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the 
Council’s adopted Supplementary Planning Document 4: A Guide for Designing 
House Extensions and Alterations. 
 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any equivalent Order 
following the amendment, re-enactment or revocation thereof) upon first 
installation the windows in the first floor on the side elevations facing 57 and 61 
Northenden Road shall be fitted with, to a height of no less than 1.7m above 
finished floor level, non-opening lights and textured glass which obscuration level 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 7



 

 
 

is no less than Level 3 of the Pilkington Glass scale (or equivalent) and retained 
as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory level of privacy between properties, having 
regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the Council’s adopted 
Supplementary Planning Document 4: A Guide for Designing House Extensions 
and Alterations.  
 

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended), no first floor or dormer 
windows (other than those shown on the approved plan) shall be formed in the 
side or rear (north-west, north-east or south-east) elevations, unless a further 
planning permission is granted for that development. 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory level of privacy between properties, having 
regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the Council’s adopted 
Supplementary Planning Document 4: A Guide for Designing House Extensions 
and Alterations.  
 
 
 

 
CMR 

 
 
 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 8



E

E

1

2

6

9

4

3

5

The

2a

49

6a

74

51
10

76

69

53

65

1a

82

63
84

55

13

61

86

Worthington Park

6b

SD

Court

82a

C
R

Dane House

C
H

EL
TE

N
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

27.5m

1 to 12

Statue

66 to 68

W
ard

 B
d

y

C
R

A
V

E
N

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E
1

2

2

2

2

6

4

59

Lodge

Holmdale

82b

NORTHENDEN ROAD

1 to 20

A
M

 R
O

A
D

27.6

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

86854/HHA/15

59 Northenden Road, Sale (site hatched on plan)

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

Planning Service
Committee date 12/05/2016

Trafford Council

28/04/2016

100023172 (2012)

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 9



 

 
 

WARD: Urmston 
 

87573/FUL/16 DEPARTURE: NO 

 

Erection of 2.4m high weld mesh fencing following removal of existing fencing. 

 
Urmston Grammar School, Newton Road, Urmston, M41 5UG 
 
APPLICANT:  AHR Building Consultancy 
AGENT:  AHR 

RECOMMENDATION:  GRANT  
 
This application has been called in by Councillor Harding on the grounds that it 
would be visually intrusive, would not be in keeping with the existing character of 
the area, inappropriate materials, and whilst there are inaccuracies relating to 
height of existing railings within the submitted documents and plans. 
 
SITE 
 
The application site relates to a playing field associated with Urmston Grammar School 
and located to the west of the main school building complex and within the curtilage of 
the school ground. The playing field is bound to its southern, northern and western 
sides by residential properties. To its western boundary there is an existing wrought iron 
railing running its full length and separated from the back of the properties on Princess 
Road by an alleyway.  
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Permission is sought for the erection of a dark green (RAL6005) 2.4m high weldmesh 
fence to the western boundary of the application site. The development would take 
place following removal of the existing fencing. 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
For the purposes of this application, the Development Plan in Trafford 
Comprises: 
 
• The Trafford Core Strategy, adopted 25th January 2012; The Trafford Core 

Strategy is the first of Trafford’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
development plan documents to be adopted by the Council; it partially supersedes 
the Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), see Appendix 5 of the Core 
Strategy. 

• The Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), adopted 19th June 
2006; The majority of the policies contained in the Revised Trafford UDP were 
saved in either September 2007 or December 2008, in accordance with the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 until such time that they are 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 10



 

 
 

superseded by policies within the (LDF). Appendix 5 of the Trafford Core Strategy 
provides details as to how the Revised UDP is being replaced by Trafford LDF.  
 

PRINCIPAL RELEVANT CORE STRATEGY POLICIES 
L7 – Design 
R2 – Natural Environment  
R5 – Open space, sport and recreation 
 
PROPOSALS MAP NOTATION 
Protection of Open Space 
 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT REVISED UDP POLICIES/PROPOSALS 
OSR5 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 
 
The DCLG published the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 
2012. The NPPF will be referred to as appropriate in the report. 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE (NPPG) 
 
DCLG published the National Planning Practice Guidance on 6 March 2014, which 
replaced a number of practice guidance documents. The NPPG will be referred to as 
appropriate in the report. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
None relevant 
 
APPLICANT’S SUBMISSION 
 
To help demonstrate that the principle of the development could be acceptable, the 
application has been accompanied by a range of supporting documents as follows: - 
 

 Design and Access Statement 
 Additional Statement of Need 
 Additional supporting information, including fence specifications  

CONSULTATIONS 
 
Greater Manchester Police Design for Security – No objections, and confirms that 
such a 2.4m weldmesh fence is appropriate for its context, however recommends that to 
increase security, that alley gates be installed to the rear alley between the rear of the 
properties on Princess Road and Urmston Grammar School. Any planting along the 
fence should be limited to 1m in height whilst any trees should be at a height exceeding 
2m. No street furniture should be located in close proximity to fence whilst any 
vegetation should be maintained. 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 11



 

 
 

Electricity North West – No objections 
 
United Utilities – No comments 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Original Scheme: 
 
Neighbours: 1 no. Councillor and a total of 14 neighbours made representations to the 
Local Planning Authority on the following grounds: 
 

 Design, style and materials of fence is unattractive, inappropriate and out of 
keeping with character of the surrounding area and properties 

 Fence is unnecessarily high 
 Sense of enclosure and visually intrusive and overbearing 
 Loss of outlook 
 Discrepancy between fence dimensions as shown on submitted plans against 

development description etc. 
 original concern with regard to positioning of fence being outside curtilage of 

school and encroaching onto privately owned rear alley, however, further 
comments show this assumption was made in error   

 Would result in damage to existing shrubs and trees 
 Impact on local small animals 
 No existing security issues and no clear justification for new fence 
 Loss of light to rear gardens 
 Discrepancies and errors present in Design and Access Statement and 

application form. 

OBSERVATIONS 
 
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
1. The application site is located within the existing urban area of Urmston and 

comprises school buildings, playing fields and its curtilage. However, the proposed 
development itself relates to the replacement of an existing fence forming the 
western boundary between the school and the residential properties to Princess 
Road    

 
2. Paragraph 72 of the NPPF states that ‘Local planning authorities should: 

 

 give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools” 
 

DESIGN AND STREET SCENE 
 
3. Paragraph 58 of the NPPF states that “The Government attaches great importance 

to the built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 12



 

 
 

is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people”. Paragraph 64 states that “Permission should be refused for 
development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for 
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions”. 

 
4. Policy L7 of the Core Strategy states that in relation to matters of amenity 

protection development must not prejudice the amenity of future occupiers of the 
development and/or occupants of adjacent properties by reason of overbearing, 
overshadowing, overlooking, visual intrusion, noise or disturbance, odour or in any 
other way. 

 
5. The existing approximately 1.9m high wrought iron railings forming the western 

boundary between Urmston Grammar School and the properties to Princess Road 
would be replaced with a dark green (RAL6005) 2.4m high weldmesh fence. 
Located to the rear of the properties to Princess Road and separated by an 
alleyway, the proposed railings would be set back and almost completely screened 
from the highway.  

 
6. The alleyway is jointly owned by the residents of the terraced row of properties to 

Princess Road which back on to it. The rear boundary treatments of the individual 
properties vary, the majority comprising timber panel fences approximately 1.6m to 
1.7m in height, whereas some properties have boundary treatments approximately 
1m in height and some have no boundary treatments at all. As such, it is 
considered in most cases views of the proposed fence would be screened up to a 
height of approximately 1.7m when viewed from ground floor level or from the rear 
garden areas of the properties to Princess Road. 

 
7. It is considered that the style, design and colour of the proposed weldmesh fence 

treatment is appropriate development within the context of a school. Whilst it would 
stand approximately 0.5m taller than the existing railings, the proposed height and 
style of the 2.4m high weldmesh fence would preserve the open views onto the 
school’s playing fields that are currently experienced through the existing wrought 
iron railings. Furthermore, the dark green (RAL6005) colour of the proposed fence 
would help it blend against its background. Taking all of the above into 
consideration and given that the alleyway separating the proposed fence from the 
rear boundaries of the properties to Princess Road is between approximately 3.8m 
and 4m in width, it is considered that the proposed fence would not appear visibly 
obtrusive from those properties. Furthermore, being situated to the rear of the 
terraced properties and back from the road, it is considered that neither would the 
proposed fence it appear visibly obtrusive within the wider street scene.  

 
8. As such it is considered that the proposed design would be acceptable and in 

compliance with policy L7 of the Core Strategy and with paragraphs 58 and 64 of 
the NPPF set out above. 

 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 13



 

 
 

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY   
 
9. Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy states that “In relation to matters of amenity 

protection, development must be compatible with the surrounding area; and not 
prejudice the amenity of the future occupiers of the development and/or occupants 
of adjacent properties by reason of overbearing, overshadowing, overlooking, 
visual intrusion, noise and/or disturbance, odour or in any other way”. 

 
Impact on properties to Princess Road: 

 
10. The majority of terraced properties along Princess Road which back onto the 

school have existing rear boundary treatments of up to approximately 1.7m in 
height, thus providing some limited screening to the existing railings and the 
proposed fencing. Even in light of some of those terraced properties having no 
rear boundary treatments at all, given that these properties would be separated 
from the proposed fence by an existing alleyway, which as measured on site is 
between approximately 3.8m to 4m in width, that the proposed fence would be 
sited in exactly the same position as the existing railings and that the weldmesh 
style of the fence would allow views through to the school playing fields and 
beyond, it is considered that the 0.5m increase in the height of the proposed fence 
when compared to the 1.9m height of the existing railings is not so significant so 
that it would result in an unacceptable sense of enclosure or loss of outlook, or 
appear visually intrusive or overbearing to those properties.  

 
TREES 
 
11. Policy R2 of the Trafford Core Strategy requires development to protect and 

enhance the landscape character of an area. It is noted that at the time of the site 
visit there were a number of trees on site and in close proximity to the proposed 
fence. However, the school have confirmed in writing that no trees will be removed 
as a consequence of the proposed development.  

 
 SECURITY 

 
12. The submitted Design and Access Statement and Statement of Need documents 

set out that the proposed works are part of a larger programme of works to 
improve the Health and Safety and Safeguarding across the school site. The 
proposed 2.4m high weldmesh fence would replace the existing approximately 
1.9m high wrought iron railing which is considered to be poorly maintained and 
which if not replaced could potentially compromise the overall security of the 
school following other improvements to the schools security having been 
implemented. GM Police Design for Security comment in their response that a 
2.4m high weldmesh fence would be an appropriate choice for a perimeter fence in 
a high risk location, helping to address issues such as pupils leaving or offenders 
gaining entry, and, given its vulnerable location, are in support of this application.  

 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 14



 

 
 

13.  Design for Security also recommend the introduction of alley gates to the rear 
alleyway off Princess Road to further strengthen security, given that the alleyway 
benefits from little natural surveillance and that at present waste bins could be 
used as a climbing aid over the existing school boundary. The school has been 
made aware of these comments but this is outside the scope of the current 
application.  

 
14. It is therefore considered that the proposed 2.4m high weldmesh fence is an 

appropriate development in the context of this location and that security at the 
school would be improved as a result of the proposed development.  

 
CONCLUSION 

 
15. The proposed development would help improve the security of Urmston Grammar 

School along its western boundary, whilst working towards their larger programme 
of works to improve the Health and Safety and Safeguarding across the school 
site.  The proposed scheme is considered acceptable in terms of design and visual 
and residential amenity and would comply with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core 
Strategy and guidance in the NPPF. As such it is recommended that planning 
permission should be granted, subject to conditions. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to the following conditions:-  
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission.  
 
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 
accordance with the details shown on the amended plans, numbers, 
2015.00871.012/P02 and 2015.00871.012/P03, received 30th March 2016 and on 
the amended plan, number 2015.00871.012/P01, received on 27th April 2016, 
and the “Betafence” specification of fencing submitted. 
 
Reason: To clarify the permission, having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core 
Strategy. 
 

3. Prior to first installation, the fencing hereby permitted shall be powder coated / 
coloured dark green (RAL6005) or such other colour as has previously been 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is acceptable, 
having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy. 

 
BB 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 15



E

5

1 2

9

3

Club

Court

School

18

21
15

96 86 80

43

12

48

22

10

63

13

46

16

47

23

17

26

25
60

58

30

351a

34

27

97

19

1c

28

72

42

66
56

37

14

83

32

36

45
84

70

31

87
75

64

Sports Ground

Cricket Ground

11
23

23

2

97

16

1

25

14

28

26

11

1

1

11

1a

2

13

1a

5

14

10

13

1

35

12

2

2

1

13

19

9

96

48

13

35

46

15

42

2

Urmston
Infants

Churc

Albany

38

10

13

44

30

40

40

94

24

41 91

95

Wycliffe Court1b1d

Urmston Grammar

11

El

Urmston Junior School

FS

FB

LB

132

162

130

134
124

158

101

127

154

108

10
8

106

100

35a

26a

Presby

26b

115

ROSS GROVE
P

R
IN

C
E

S
S

 R
O

A
D

N
E

W
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

HEREFORD GROVE

ess Centre

Newton Court

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

84 82

W
Y

C
L

IF
F

E
 R

O
A

D

R
O

S
E

N
E

A
T

H
 R

O
A

D

R
O

S
E

N
E

A
T

H
 R

O
A

D

A
L

B
A

N
Y

 C
O

U
R

T

English Martyrs

TCB

BARTON AVENUE

1 to 9

G
L

E
N

H
A

V
E

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C
A

R
R

S
V

A
L

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

21.9m

1 to 13

M
A

Y
FA

IR
 A

V
E

N
U

E
Tank

92 to 88

Sub Sta
El Sub Sta

Sports Hall

39

100

Allotm

130a

2

18

1

17
15

16

12

1

37

46

12

13

9

1

School

School

22

25

1

60

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

87573/FUL/16

Urmston Grammar School, Newton Road, Urmston (site hatched on plan)

1:2,500

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

Planning Service
Committee date 12/05/2016

Trafford Council

28/04/2016

100023172 (2012)

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 16



 

 
 

WARD: Bowdon 
 

87720/HHA/16 DEPARTURE: No 

 
Erection of single storey rear extension, alterations to front elevation and other 
external alterations.  
 
24 Sunnybank Road, Bowdon, WA14 3PW 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr G Jackson 
AGENT:  Mrs Emma Roden 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT  
 
 
 
Councillor Hyman has requested that this application be determined by 
Committee for the reasons set out within the report. 
 
SITE 
 
The application site is a detached residential dwellinghouse located on a cul-de-sac 
spur off Sunnybank Road, Bowdon. The dwelling is predominantly red brick; however 
the front elevation at the first floor has a ‘mock-tudor’ feature, akin to similar 
neighbouring properties. The dwelling has an open relationship with the highway, albeit 
set back from it, with hardstanding leading to the garage outrigger and grass located 
outside the front elevation of the main dwelling. The dwelling backs onto open fields at 
the rear. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey rear extension with 
external alterations.  
 
The single storey rear extension would project 3.9 metres in length, 5.51 metres in 
width, with a total height of 3.9 metres. The proposed extension would have a dual 
pitched roof, with the principal outlook to the rear comprising bi-folding doors, with two 
side windows and two rooflights. The external alterations proposed include the 
replacement of the existing front door and screen and the installation of two new 
obscure glazed windows to the gable elevations of the property, one to the new utility 
room which would face no. 22 and one for a W.C facing no. 26.  
 
The extension is proposed to be constructed of brick to match the existing property, with 
timber windows and aluminium framed bi-folding doors. 
 
The works would also include the installation of a decked area to the rear of the 
proposed extension.  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 17



 

 
 

The extension and other alterations would all normally constitute permitted development 
under Class A of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended). However, permitted development 
rights were removed by Condition 8 of the original permission for the residential 
development, H/24720, granted in 1987. The reason for the condition was “to protect 
the character of the residential area and to ensure that its appearance is not 
detrimentally affected by unsympathetic development.” 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
For the purpose of this application, the Development Plan in Trafford Comprises: 
 
• The Trafford Core Strategy, adopted 25th January 2012; The Trafford Core 

Strategy is the first of Trafford’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
development plan documents to be adopted by the Council; it partially supersedes 
the Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), see Appendix 5 of the Core 
Strategy. 

 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT CORE STRATEGY POLICIES 
L7 – Design 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS  
SPD4: A Guide for Designing House Extensions and Alterations – (adopted February 
2012) 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 
 
The DCLG published the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 
2012. The NPPF will be referred to as appropriate in the report. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
87590/CPL/16 - Application for Certificate of Lawful Development for a single storey 
rear extension (Application Withdrawn) 
 
H/24720 – Erection of 9 mews houses, 32 detached houses and 10 detached 
bungalows. Construction of estate road, from Primrose Bank. Provision of play area with 
pedestrian access from Brickkiln Road. Reclaimation of former green-houses for open 
space and provision of footpath into open land to the south of the site. (Approved 20th 
August 1987).  
 
Condition 8 removed permitted development rights for external alterations and 
extensions, as well as no buildings, gates, walls, fences or other structures.  

CONSULTATIONS 
 
None.  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 18



 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Neighbours – 5 letters of objection have been received from one single household and 
from a Councillor when calling in the application. The following issues have been 
raised:-   
 
- Lack of publicity  
- Houses are just two metres wall to wall between the existing properties 
- The length of the extension would equate to just under half the length of their garden 
- Impact on light 
- Proposals would detract from the value of the house 
- Trees are within falling distance of the house 
- Overdevelopment  
- Loss of amenity for both rear facing rooms and garden 
 
OBSERVATIONS 
 
DESIGN AND APPEARANCE 
 
1. Policy L7 of the Core Strategy states that in considering applications for 

development within the Borough, the Council will determine whether or not the 
proposed development meets the standards set in national guidelines and the 
requirements of Policy L7. The relevant extracts of Policy L7 require that 
development is appropriate in its context; makes best use of opportunities to 
improve the character and quality of an area by appropriately addressing scale, 
density, height, layout, elevation treatment, materials, landscaping; and is 
compatible with the surrounding area. 

 
2. The proposed extension is considered to be subservient to the host dwelling due to 

its massing and single storey nature.  The extension would also not span the entire 
width of the host dwelling. The depth is considered appropriate to a detached 
dwelling of this nature and is in accordance with the Council’s SPD ‘A Guide for 
Designing House Extensions and Alterations’. 

 
3. The proposed single storey rear extension would be not be visible from the street 

scene due to its siting at the rear of the property but nevertheless the external 
materials of the proposed rear extension are proposed to match the host dwelling.   
 

4. The external alterations are not considered to cause any undue impact upon the 
character of the host dwelling or the wider area.  The replacement door and screen 
would be partially obscured due to the set back from the main front elevation by 0.85 
metres. The proposals to install two obscure glazed windows on the gable elevations 
facing both no. 22 and no. 26 are obscured from public view due to their siting.  

 
5. The external decking shown on the plans is proposed to be 0.20 metres (200mm) in 

height, and therefore does not in itself require planning permission.  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 19



 

 
 

 
6. The proposed works are considered appropriate and in keeping with the host 

property and would not result harm to it character and appearance. As such the 
proposal is considered to be in compliance with Policy L7 of the TBC Core Strategy. 

 
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY  
 
7. Policy L7 of the Core Strategy states that in relation to matters of amenity protection 

development must not prejudice the amenity of future occupiers of the development 
and / or occupants of adjacent properties by reason of overbearing, overshadowing, 
overlooking, visual intrusion, noise or disturbance, odour or in any other way. 
 

8. Paragraph 3.4.2 of SPD 4 states that normally a single storey rear extension close to 
a common boundary should not project more than 4 metres for detached properties. 
The proposals would project 3.975 metres and therefore the projection of the 
proposed rear single storey extension is policy compliant.   

 
9. The proposed extension would be set in 1.20 metres from the common boundary 

with no. 22 and a further 0.95 metres away from the side elevation of no. 22. The 
rear elevation of no. 22 projects marginally further to the rear (west) than the 
applicant’s dwelling.  The maximum height of the proposed extension would be 3.9 
metres, with height to the eaves at 2.29 metres, with the roof to slope away from the 
neighbouring property. On this basis, taking into account the acceptable projection, 
the existing siting of the applicant’s property in relation to no. 22 and the set back of 
the extension from the common boundary; it is considered that the proposed 
extension would not have an undue overbearing impact on the occupiers of no.22.   

 
10. Concerns were raised by objectors that the proposed extension would block out low 

winter sun. The extension would be positioned directly to the south of number 22 
and therefore it is accepted that there is likely to be some impact in this respect, 
although the officer’s site visit was carried out in the middle of March at mid/late 
morning on a sunny day and officers noted that there was already some 
overshadowing of the area immediately to the rear of the dwelling at no.22 from the 
siting of the applicant’s existing property. It is considered, given the above 
considerations, including the fact that the proposed extension would comply with the 
SPD4 guidelines in terms of the extent of its projection, its relatively modest eaves 
height, the fact that its roof would slope away from the boundary and the fact that the 
rear elevation of no. 22 is set slightly further back into the site, the proposed 
extension would not have so significant an impact in terms of overshadowing as to 
justify refusal of the application. It is therefore concluded that the proposed 
extension complies with Core Strategy policy L7 and guidance contained within 
SPD4.  

 
11. While the applicant’s property projects further to the rear (west) of No. 26 by close to 

1 metre, the proposed side elevation of the extension would be set 3.6 metres from 
the common boundary. This distance between the proposal and the common 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 20



 

 
 

boundary is considered to be sufficient to ensure that the proposal would not result 
in any undue harm to light, outlook nor would the development appear overbearing 
in relation to that property. 

 
12. There are no properties located beyond the rear common boundary. 

 
13. Windows are proposed to the side elevations of the proposed extension facing Nos. 

22 and 26. Due to their proximity to the common boundaries of both neighbouring 
properties, it is recommended that these windows are obscurely glazed; this can be 
secured via condition in order to protect the privacy levels of adjoining occupiers. 

 
14. The proposed windows located to the side elevations of the existing property, 

serving the WC and utility room are shown as obscure glazed on the submitted 
plans and therefore would not cause any undue loss of amenity to the neighbouring 
property by virtue of overlooking and as a consequence complies as Core Strategy 
Policy L7. It is recommended that a condition should be attached requiring these to 
be retained as obscure glazed. 

 
TREES 

 
15. Concerns were raised by an objector that the proposals could impact on trees and 

that the trees are within falling distance of the rear of the property. The trees at the 
rear of the property are subject to a TPO (no. 158 – Grange Farm/Bollin Nurseries, 
Bowdon. Nevertheless, given the siting of the proposed extension in relation to 
these, it is not considered that there is likely to be any undue impact on the vitality of 
the trees. 
  

OTHER ISSUES  
 
16. Concerns were raised from the objector over notification and consultation on the 

application. 
 

17. Notification letters were sent out to neighbouring properties (including no. 22) and a 
site notice was displayed. The application has therefore been publicised in 
accordance with statutory requirements. 

 
18. The potential impact of the development upon property prices, whether an increase 

or a decrease, is not a material planning consideration.  
  
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
19. The floorspace of the extension would be less than 100 square metres and the 

proposal is not CIL liable.   
 
 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 21



 

 
 

CONCLUSION  
 
20. The proposal accords with the development plan and is recommended for approval 

subject to the conditions listed below. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission 

 
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 

accordance with the details shown on submitted plans, numbers ‘P001 Location 
Plan, P002 Existing Plans and Elevations; Proposed Plans and Elevations’ and 
P003 Site Plan, (received by the Local Planning Authority on 3rd March 2016).  

 
Reason: In the interests of proper planning and for the avoidance of doubt, 
having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy. 
 

3. The materials used in any exterior work must be of a similar appearance to those 
used in the construction of the exterior of the existing building. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual 
amenity in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the 
Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document 4: A Guide for Designing 
House Extensions and Alterations and the requirements of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any equivalent Order following 
the amendment, re-enactment or revocation thereof) upon first installation, the 
proposed ground floor side windows in the proposed extension and in the 
existing dwelling in the north elevation facing no. 22 Sunnybank Road and south 
elevation facing no. 26 Sunnybank Road shall be fitted with textured glass which 
obscuration level is no less than Level 3 of the Pilkington Glass scale (or 
equivalent) and shall be non-opening, unless the opening parts of the windows 
are more than 1.7m above floor level and shall be retained as such thereafter 

 
Reason: In the interest of amenity and in compliance with Policy L7 of the 
Trafford Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 

TO 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 22



8

1

9
2

7

3

5

10

20

36

17

15

48

22

38

46

28

30
16

58

54

52

50

11

T
R

E
E
SUNNY ROAD

SUNNY B
ANK R

OAD

BAILEY W
ALK2

1

2

10

15

1
B

IR
C

H
C

L
O

S
E
BANK

C
H

E
R

 D
R

8

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

87720/HHA/16

24 Sunnybank Road, Bowdon (site hatched on plan)

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

Planning Service
Committee date 12/05/2016

Trafford Council

28/04/2016

100023172 (2012)

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 23



 

 
 

WARD: Flixton 
 

87733/FUL/16 DEPARTURE: No 

 

Development of a 40 bedroom care home (Use Class C2), together with 
associated car parking, amenity space, ancillary structures and landscaping. 

 
Bowfell House, 104 Bowfell Road, Urmston, M41 5RR 
 
APPLICANT:  James Callaghan & Sons 
AGENT:  DWA Architects Ltd 

RECOMMENDATION:  GRANT  
 
 
 
SITE 
 
The application relates to a roughly triangular area of land where a former library 
building stood, known as Bowfell House. The library building was single storey and 
located centrally within the site, at the junction of Bowfell Road, Flixton Road and Brook 
Road in Urmston. This building has recently been demolished following the grant of 
prior approval application ref: 86161/PRB/15. The surrounding area is predominantly 
residential in character and a church bounds the site to the northwest.  
 
PROPOSAL 
 
It is proposed to erect a predominately two storey building to accommodate 40no. 
bedrooms for a residential and dementia care home (Use Class C2). Each resident 
would have their own en-suite bedroom and would share communal facilities such as 
the dining rooms and lounges. This accommodation would be provided at ground and 
first floor levels. Within the roof space of the building at third floor level, it is proposed to 
accommodate ancillary rooms including storage, staff facilities and a kitchen to serve 
the building. Only rooflights would be proposed to provide light to rooms at this level.  
 
The proposed building has been designed in a "V" shape that addresses the 
streetscene, following the triangular shape of the site with gables that aim to reflect the 
architectural character and scale of buildings in the vicinity. The main entrance to the 
building would be accessed from the rear car park and a separate service entrance 
would be provided to the rear of the building. A focal point of the development will be 
formed at the junction of Brook Road, Flixton Road and Bowfell Road with landscaping 
incorporating an existing glacial boulder at the site. The building would be set back from 
the boundaries with Brook Road and Bowfell Road to enable landscaping and external 
communal space to the building frontages. In addition to this, external communal space 
would be provided in the form of ground and first floor level terraces located at the front 
of the building overlooking the junction of Brook Road, Flixton Road and Bowfell Road 
and these would be accessed from the lounge and dining rooms within the building.  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 24



 

 
 

 
Communal parking in the form of 12 car parking spaces would be provided and the 
proposal utilises the existing vehicular site access from Brook Road.  
 
The total floorspace of the proposed development would be 2279 m2. 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
For the purposes of this application, the Development Plan in Trafford comprises: 
 
• The Trafford Core Strategy adopted 25th January 2012; The Trafford Core 

Strategy is the first of Trafford’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
development plan documents to be adopted by the Council; it partially supersedes 
the Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), see Appendix 5 of the Core 
Strategy. 

• The Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), adopted 19th June 
2006; The majority of the policies contained in the Revised Trafford UDP were 
saved in either September 2007 or December 2008, in accordance with the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 until such time that they are 
superseded by policies within the (LDF). Appendix 5 of the Trafford Core Strategy 
provides details as to how the Revised UDP is being replaced by Trafford LDF.  

 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT CORE STRATEGY POLICIES 
L1 – Land for New Homes 
L2 – Meeting Housing Needs 
L4 – Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
L5 - Climate Change 
L7 – Design 
L8 – Planning Obligations 
 
PROPOSALS MAP NOTATION 
None 
 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT REVISED UDP POLICIES/PROPOSALS 
None 
 
SUPPLEMNTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE 
Residential Care Homes and Nursing Homes for the Elderly 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 
 
The DCLG published the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 
2012. The NPPF will be referred to as appropriate in the report. 
 
 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 25



 

 
 

NATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE (NPPG) 
 
DCLG published the National Planning Practice Guidance on 6 March 2014, which 
replaced a number of practice guidance documents. The NPPG will be referred to as 
appropriate in the report. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
86161/PRB/15 - Demolition of existing library building (Consultation under Schedule 2, 
Part 11 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015. Prior Approval not required. Issued 11.08.2015 

CONSULTATIONS 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority - No objections subject to SUDs condition  
 
Local Highway Authority - No objections. Comments will be discussed in the 
observations section of the report.  
 
United Utilities - No objections subject to condition requiring foul and surface water to 
be drained separately and a SUDs scheme to be submitted.  
 
Public Health - No comments have been received to date. Any received will be 
reported in the Additional Information Report. 
 
APPLICANTS SUBMISSION  
 
The application is accompanied by the following supporting statements:  
 
Design and Access Statement  
Carbon Budget Statement 
Tree Survey and Constraints Report 
Crime Prevention Plan 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

None received   

OBSERVATIONS 
 
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 

1. The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a 40 bedroom care 
and dementia home falling with Use Class C2 with associated car parking, 
landscaping and ancillary structures.  
 

2. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF indicates that housing applications should be 
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 26



 

 
 

development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be 
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-
year supply of deliverable housing sites. 

 
3. Paragraph 14 of the NPPF indicates that where the development plan is absent, 

silent or relevant policies are out-of-date, planning permission should be granted 
unless:  any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework 
taken as a whole; or specific policies in this Framework indicate development 
should be restricted. 

 
4. The Council does not, at present, have a five year supply of immediately 

available housing land. The absence of a continuing supply of housing land has 
significant consequences in terms of the Council's ability to contribute towards 
the government's aim of boosting significantly the supply of housing. Significant 
weight should therefore be afforded in the determination of this planning 
application to the schemes contribution to addressing the identified housing 
shortfall, and meeting the Government's objective of securing a better balance 
between housing demand and supply.  

 
5. Whilst the Council’s housing policies are considered to be out of date in that it 

cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, the scheme 
achieves many of the aspirations which the Plan policies seek to deliver. 
Specifically, the proposal contributes towards meeting the Council’s housing land 
targets and housing needs identified in Core Strategy Policies L1 and L2 in that 
the scheme will deliver a 40 bedroom care home facility in a sustainable location. 
The majority of the site is brownfield and would assist in meeting the Council’s 
target of locating 80% of new housing provision on previously developed 
brownfield land. The scheme is considered to be acceptable in relation to 
Policies L1.7 and L1.8, in that it helps towards meeting the wider Strategic and 
Place Objectives of the Core Strategy.  
 

6. Core Strategy Policies L2.17 and L2.18 deal with meeting the needs of older 
people in the Borough; with Policy L2.18 specifically identifying the need for 
some 500 units for the frail and elderly. This proposal would contribute to 
meeting the specific needs of older persons.  
 

7. The Council’s Adopted SPG ‘Residential Care Homes and Nursing Homes for 
the Elderly’ is also of relevance to this proposal. Having regard to the above it is 
considered that the principle of a residential care home in this location is 
acceptable in principle. 

 
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY  
 

8. Policy L7.3 of the Core Strategy states that development must not prejudice the 
amenity of future occupants of the development and/or occupants of adjacent 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 27



 

 
 

properties by reason of overbearing, overshadowing, overlooking, visual 
intrusion, noise and/or disturbance, odour or in any other way.  The impact on 
neighbouring dwellings is considered in the light of the Council’s Planning 
Guidelines for New Residential Development (SPG4), particularly the 
requirements to retain distances of 15m between buildings with a main elevation 
facing a two storey blank gable, 21m across public highways (24m in the case of 
three storey buildings), 27m across private gardens where there are major facing 
windows and 10.5m to rear garden boundaries from main windows. 
 

9. Residential properties are located immediately opposite the site on Brook Road 
and the proposed building would be positioned between 21 - 23m from the front 
elevations of these properties.  
 

10. In this case the proposed development would comply; given the building is 
predominantly two storeys with only ancillary accommodation within the roof 
space. All windows to the residential accommodation would be located at ground 
and first floor level only with only roof light openings in the roof. Furthermore no 
rooflights are proposed in the roof slope closest to Brook Road.  
 

11. The closest residential properties on Bowfell Road would be located over 50m 
from the proposed building and therefore it is considered the proposal would 
have an acceptable impact here.  
 

12. To the north of the site is an existing church building therefore it is not considered 
the proposal would have an unacceptable impact on amenity in this direction, 
and the building would be positioned between 13-35m from this boundary. 
Number 6 The Spinney would be positioned at an angle to the proposed building 
and the closest part of the proposed building would be 27m from the rear 
elevation of No. 6. The standards within the SPG require 27m across gardens, 
and due to the orientation of the building it is considered the proposal complies in 
this regard. 
 

13. The closest residential properties to the building are Numbers 4 and 5 The 
Spinney, on the eastern boundary of the site. These properties enjoy an open 
aspect and the library building was set back significantly from this boundary. 
However the proposed building would be one and a half storeys only at its 
closest to these properties, with 6.5m would be retained to the boundary. 
Furthermore no windows are proposed in this elevation. Number 4 and 5 The 
Spinney is located at an angle to the proposed building and the closest part of 4 
and 5 The Spinney would be 10m from the proposed one and half storey 
extension and 14m from the two storey side gable. Due to the angle of the 
properties in The Spinney and the separation distances proposed, it is 
considered the proposal maintains a degree of spaciousness at this point and 
would be set back from the boundary. A modest flat roof recycle store is also 
proposed to this boundary. This would be a timber structure containing fully 
sealed bin receptacles and it is considered the enclosed bin storage contained 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 28



 

 
 

within the structure would ensure there is no detrimental impact to neighbours in 
terms of odour. Consequently it is not considered the proposal would have a 
harmful impact upon the residential amenity enjoyed by the occupants of The 
Spinney properties to warrant a refusal of the application on these grounds. 
Established landscaping and hedgerow would be retained along this boundary 
further softening the impact of the development upon the occupants of The 
Spinney properties.  
 
IMPACT ON HERITAGE ASSETS 

 
14. With regards to the historic environment the NPPF states that local planning 

authorities should take account of:  
 

a. the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;  

b. the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and  

c. the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness (paragraph 131).  

 
15. Policy 132 of the NPPF states the more significant the heritage asset the greater 

the presumption in favour of its conservation. 
 
Impact on non-designated heritage assets 
 
16. As mentioned previously there is an existing historic glacial boulder located on 

the site. This has historically been on display at the site when the library building 
was in use and is an important community asset that has remained at the site for 
a number of years. It is not a scheduled monument however due to its historical 
presence on the site it is considered to be a non-designated heritage asset.  
 

17. Policy 135 of the NPPF states "the effect of an application on the significance of 
a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the 
application. In weighing applications that affect directly or indirectly non 
designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard 
to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset." 
 

18. Landscaping is proposed to all sides of the building and the front boundaries to 
Bowfell Road and Brook Road would be bound by 1.8m high traditional metal 
railings. These would provide security while also enabling clear views of the 
building from the street. Behind this boundary treatment hard and soft 
landscaping is proposed to provide communal external amenity space. The 
existing historic glacial boulder would be retained and positioned in front of the 
building forming a focal point within the landscaping. This is an important 
community asset that has remained at the site for a number of years therefore its 
retention and display at the front of the site is considered to create a welcome 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 29



 

 
 

focal point in front of the building. Through the retention of the glacial boulder at 
the site and its incorporation into the proposed landscaping scheme, ensuring it 
remains in public view it is not considered the proposal would result in any harm 
or loss to the significance of the non-designated heritage asset in this case, 
compliant with the NPPF and relevant local and national policies summarised in 
the report. 

 
LAYOUT, SCALE OF DEVELOPMENT AND VISUAL AMENITY 
 

19. The proposed development would take the form of a "V" shaped building 
mirroring the corner plot shape. The main entrance to the building would be from 
the rear and accessed from the proposed car parking area. The positioning of the 
main entrance to the building is heavily influenced by the requirement for ease of 
access to the building. By locating the entrance closest to the car park serving 
the facility, it will aid accessibility for those residents and visitors who may have 
limited mobility. While the main entrance would be positioned to the rear, the 
front focal point of the building would face the junction of Bowfell Road, Flixton 
Road and Brook Road. This would feature balconies at ground and first floor 
levels for external amenity space to be utilised by the residents. The building 
would be set back from the road with landscaping to the front and the existing 
historic glacial boulder at the site would be made a feature in the landscaping. 
Therefore the proposed building is considered to address the existing road 
junction in terms of design and appearance.  
 

20. The building would be predominantly two storeys. The proposed gables 
successfully break up the elevations and the overall massing and scale of the 
building is considered to be in keeping with the immediate context. The eaves of 
the main roof to the building would be 5.8m above ground floor level with the 
proposed gables ranging in heights between 8m - 9.5m with the larger gable 
structures located on the rear elevation of the building fronting the proposed car 
park. The main ridge line of the roof would extend to 11m in height however it 
would be set back at least 7m from the front elevations of the building, thus 
ensuring the building appears predominately two storeys in scale.  
 

21. The front of the building would address the road junction of Bowfell, Flixton and 
Brook Roads and would be largely glazed with doors providing access to the 
front garden and balconies at first floor level. This elevation would feature an 
access at ground floor level to the front garden area from the main dining and 
lounge areas accommodated within. The design of this part of the building would 
enable views of the road junction and would accommodate areas for the 
residents of the care home to relax and dine.  The applicant has explained in 
their submission that the view from these rooms would overlook the junction and 
the activity of the road junction would provide important visual interest to the 
residents of the care home. Consequently the design of the building here is 
considered to be acceptable in terms of design and functionality and would 
provide a successful connection between the two wings of the development.  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 30



 

 
 

 
22.  The building is proposed to be constructed mainly from red brick with elements 

of white render. Contrasting red brick is proposed to provide detail and on the 
elevations together with brick feature details and grey roof tiles. It is considered 
the proposed palette of materials would be in keeping with the existing buildings 
in the area and the proposed detail would add articulation to the buildings 
elevations. A condition is recommended requiring details of all external materials 
to be submitted to the Council prior to commencement of above ground 
development.  
 

23. To the north eastern boundary it is proposed to construct a lean to recycling store 
structure. This would be single storey and positioned against the north eastern 
elevation of the building. It would be a modest timber construction with a 
maximum height of 2345mm with a flat roof. Due to the location and modest 
scale and design of the structure this is considered to have an acceptable visual 
impact, being set back from Bowfell Road with landscaping to the front and side. 
In close proximity to this it is also proposed to construct a gazebo style structure. 
This would also be of timber construction.  

 
24. It is noted there is little private external space proposed, with the majority formed 

around the front of the building fronting Bowfell and Brook Road. However it is 
acknowledged the proposed terraces to the ground and first floor level of the 
building would provide enclosed secure outdoor seating areas and as discussed 
in the submitted Design and Access Statement, many of the proposed residents 
are likely to have limited mobility. Consequently it is considered the proposal 
makes the best use of the landscaped areas to the front of the building to provide 
valuable external amenity space for future residents.  
 

VEHICLE PARKING AND HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS 
 

25. The proposal would utilise the existing vehicular entrance to the site off Brook 
Road and would include an area of hardstanding for the parking of vehicles. The 
Council's Local Highway Authority has been consulted on the proposal and 
raised no objections. In accordance with SPD3: Parking Standards and Design, 
the parking requirements for a proposal within Use Class C2 (Residential 
Institutions) is 1 space per 5 bedrooms in addition to 3 disabled spaces a 
minimum of 2 cycle spaces and 2 motorcycle spaces. For this development 
comprising of 40 bedrooms, to accord with the SPD 10 parking spaces are 
required. 
 

26. The proposal includes the provision of 9 car parking spaces, 3 additional 
disabled parking spaces, 2 motorcycle spaces and 2 cycle stands to 
accommodate parking for 4 cycles. Consequently the proposal is in compliance 
with the Council's standards and is considered to be acceptable from a parking 
and highway perspective. The level of parking is adequate and it is considered 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 31



 

 
 

the volume of traffic will be similar or less than the previous use of the site as a 
library. 
 

27. The proposals comprise a service vehicle waiting area with a separate service 
entrance to the building at the rear from the car park. The carpark has adequate 
turning facilities for manoeuvres required by service vehicles and is considered to 
be acceptable by the Local Highway Authority.   
 

28. The proposal is considered to be acceptable on the grounds of highway safety 
and parking in accordance with guidance set out in the Council’s SPD3: Parking 
Standards and Design and Core Strategy Policy L4.  
 

TREES AND LANDSCAPING 
 

29. Landscaping is proposed to all sides of the building. Behind proposed boundary 
treatment, hard and soft landscaping is proposed to provide communal external 
amenity space. A Tree Survey has been submitted with the application and this 
indicates that there are a number of trees surrounding the perimeter of the site. 
On Bowfell Road there are four existing established trees on the verge adjacent 
to the public footpath abutting the site. These, together with all other existing 
trees are to be retained. A condition is recommended requiring details of tree 
protection measures to be submitted to the Council. Additionally a condition 
requiring a detailed landscape plan to include specifications and schedules 
(including planting size, species and numbers/densities), to be submitted to the 
Council is recommended.   

 
CRIME PREVENTION 
 

30. The application submission states the proposed building would be operated and 
staffed on a 24 hour basis, 7 days a week. Access to the building will be via the 
main entrance and digital locking mechanisms will be utilised to secure certain 
areas, such as the garden area and recycling store to ensure security and safety. 
Due to the nature of the development, the applicants state many residents will be 
bed bound or using their bedrooms for large period of time and thus this will 
provide a great deal of natural surveillance. It is considered necessary to impose 
a condition requiring further details of crime prevention measures to be submitted 
to the Council. 

 
FLOOD RISK AND DRAINAGE 
 

31. The site is located with Flood Zone 1 identified by the Environment Agency and 
is assessed as low risk in terms of flooding. The Lead Local Flood Authority has 
assessed the proposal and it is considered acceptable in terms of flood risk and 
drainage. It is recommended any approval includes conditions relating to 
submissions of schemes to limit the surface water run-off generated by the 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 32



 

 
 

proposed development and to manage the risk of flooding from overland flow of 
surface water.  

 
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
32. This proposal is subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and comes 

under the category of ‘public or institutional facility’ development; consequently 
the development will be liable to a CIL charge rate of £0 per square metre in line 
with Trafford’s CIL charging schedule and revised SPD1: Planning Obligations 
(2014).  
 

33. In accordance with Policy L8 of the Trafford Core Strategy and revised SPD1: 
Planning Obligations (2014) it is necessary to provide an element of specific 
green infrastructure. A proposal of this nature is expected to provide 1 tree per 
30sqm GIA. A provisional landscaping scheme has been submitted with the 
proposal and this shows adequate landscaping can be provided in the form or 
trees and shrubbery. A condition is recommended requiring details of 
landscaping to be submitted to the Council.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of 
this permission. 
 
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plan, numbers   AL (01) 901 A; AL 
(01) 003 A; AL (9) 902 A; AL (01) 900 A; AL (01) 001 A; AL (01) 002 A; AL (01) 904 A; 
AL (01) 004 A; AL (01) 040 A and AL (01) 041 A. 
 
Reason: To clarify the permission, having regard to Policies L1, L2, L4, L7 and L8 of the 
Trafford Core Strategy and the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework 
 
3. The premises to which this permission relates shall be used as a residential care 
home for the elderly with a maximum of 40 bedrooms and for no other purpose 
(including any other purpose within Class C2 of the Schedule to the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any 
statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification). 
 
Reason:  Other uses within the same Use Class may have a detrimental effect on the 
neighbourhood and the restriction to the use proposed will enable the Local Planning 
Authority to consider any further change of use on its merits, having regard to Policy L7 
of the Trafford Core Strategy. 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 33



 

 
 

 
4. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application no above ground 
construction works shall take place until samples and full specification of materials to be 
used externally on the building(s) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the 
materials. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity 
in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
5. a) Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the development hereby 
permitted shall not be occupied until full details of both hard and soft landscaping works 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
details shall include the formation of any banks, terraces or other earthworks, hard 
surfaced areas and materials, planting plans, specifications and schedules (including 
planting size, species and numbers/densities), existing plants / trees to be retained and 
a scheme for the timing / phasing of implementation works. 
 
(b) The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme 
for timing / phasing of implementation or within the next planting season following final 
occupation of the development hereby permitted, whichever is the sooner. 
 
(c) Any trees or shrubs planted or retained in accordance with this condition which are 
removed, uprooted, destroyed, die or become severely damaged or become seriously 
diseased within 5 years of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by 
trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its location 
and the nature of the proposed development and in accordance with Trafford Core 
Strategy Policy L7 and the National Planning Policy Framework 
 
6. No development or works of site preparation shall take place until all trees that are to 
be retained within or adjacent to the site have been enclosed with temporary protective 
fencing in accordance with BS:5837:2012 'Trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction. Recommendations'. The fencing shall be retained throughout the period of 
construction and no activity prohibited by BS:5837:2012 shall take place within such 
protective fencing during the construction period. 
 
Reason: In order to protect the existing trees on the site in the interests of the amenities 
of the area and in accordance with Trafford Core Strategy Policy L7 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
7. No part of the development shall be occupied until boundary treatments detailed in 
drawing number AL (9) 905 Rev A, have been erected in accordance with the approved 
details. The structures shall thereafter be retained.   

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 34



 

 
 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and in compliance with Trafford Core Strategy 
Policy L7 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
8. The car parking, servicing and vehicular access arrangements shown on the 
approved plans to serve the development hereby permitted shall be provided and made 
fully available for use prior to any part of the development being first brought into use 
and shall be retained thereafter for their intended purpose. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and in compliance with Trafford Core Strategy 
Policy L7 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
9. No above ground development shall take place unless and until a scheme for secure 
cycle and motor cycle storage has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented before the 
development is brought into use and shall be retained at all times thereafter unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety and the free flow of traffic and in accordance 
with Trafford Core Strategy Policies L4 and L7  and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
10. No development shall take place unless and until full details of works to limit the 
proposed peak discharge rate of storm water from the development to meet the 
requirements of the Council's level 2 Hybrid Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall not be brought into use until such works as approved are 
implemented in full and they shall be retained and maintained to a standard capable of 
limiting the peak discharge rate as set out in the SFRA thereafter. 
 
Reason: To prevent the risk of flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal 
of surface water from the site in accordance with Policies L4, L7 and L5 of the Trafford 
Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
11. The site shall be drained via separate systems for the disposal of foul and surface 
water. 
 
Reason: To prevent the risk of flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal 
of surface water from the site in accordance with Policies L4, L7 and L5 of the Trafford 
Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
12. No external lighting shall be installed on the building or elsewhere on the site unless 
a scheme for such lighting has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be fully implemented. 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 35



 

 
 

Reason: In the interests of residential and visual amenity having regard to Policy L7 of 
the Trafford Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
13. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until details of crime 
prevention measures have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford 
Council. 
 
 
 
LB 
 
 
 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 36



E

E

1
3

2

4

5

6
7

8 9

23

21
10

18

15
12 14

29

31

11

Bird

Depot

254

243

298

282

10
0

268

237

304

School

211

PW

LOUGHFIELD

THE SPINNEY

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D

(PH)

FLIXTON ROAD

BOW
FELL 

ROAD

20.1m

20.4m

El Sub Sta

11

2

2

7

4

1

3

1

1

12

8

19

19

in Hand

Ambulance

Preparatory
Abbotsford

Library

Libra

L
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

4

1

3

25

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

87733/FUL/16

Bowfell House, 104 Bowfell Road, Urmston (site hatched on plan)

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

Planning Service
Committee date 12/05/2016

Trafford Council

28/04/2016

100023172 (2012)

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 37



 

 
 

WARD: Brooklands 
 

87818/HHA/16 DEPARTURE: No 

Proposed ground floor side extension to infill the car port to provide additional 
living accommodation. 

 
13 Campbell Road, Sale, M33 4AP 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Hunter 
AGENT:  Mr Brown 

RECOMMENDATION:  GRANT  
 
 
 
The application has been reported to the Planning Committee as the applicant is 
a Council employee. 
 
SITE 
 
The application site relates to a two-storey semi-detached property fronting Campbell 
Road in Sale. The property has an existing two-storey side extension comprising a car 
port at ground floor level with living accommodation above; also a two-storey rear 
extension with porch. The former front garden is now hardstanding for vehicle parking.   
 
The property to the south-west of the application dwelling (no. 11 Campbell Road) is a 
detached bungalow. The property to the north-east (no.15) is the adjoining semi-
detached house. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Planning permission is sought for a ground floor side extension to infill the existing car 
port (10.6m long and 2.6m wide) to form a hall, utility room and wc. The spaces 
between the existing brick piers would be infilled with matching brickwork, whilst garage 
doors would be provided to the front elevation, set back within a storm porch. Windows 
would also be inserted in the side and rear elevations. This development requires 
planning permission because Condition 4 of the original planning permission for the two 
storey side extension (H/37930) stated that the car port shall not be converted into living 
accommodation unless a further planning permission has been sought and granted. The 
reason for this condition was to ensure that adequate off-site parking provision was 
retained. 
 
The proposed development also includes a single storey rear extension to the original 
part of the dwelling and the installation of two new windows in the rear elevation of the 
original part of the dwelling. These works would constitute permitted development under 
Class A of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 38



 

 
 

Development) Order 2015 (as amended) and are therefore not considered further in this 
report.  
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
For the purposes of this report, the Development Plan in Trafford Comprises: 
 
• The Trafford Core Strategy, adopted 25th January 2012; The Trafford Core 

Strategy is the first of Trafford’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
development plan documents to be adopted by the Council; it partially supersedes 
the Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), see Appendix 5 of the Core 
Strategy. 

 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT CORE STRATEGY POLICIES 
L4 – Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
L7 - Design 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 
 
The DCLG published the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 
2012. The NPPF will be referred to as appropriate in the report. 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE (NPPG) 
 
DCLG published the National Planning Practice Guidance on 6 March 2014, which 
replaced a number of practice guidance documents. The NPPG will be referred to as 
appropriate in the report. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
H/37930 – Erection of a 2-storey side and rear extension for car port and additional 
living accommodation and new bay window to front elevation. Approved with conditions 
December 1993. 
 
APPLICANT’S SUBMISSION 
 
Following the previous extension over 20 years ago, the downstairs accommodation is 
disproportionately small. The proposed extension will allow for additional 
accommodation for the family for the years ahead as they enjoy living in this area. The 
proposal will improve the aesthetics of the street, the current house is out of keeping 
with its surroundings particularly given the other extensions in the area. Using the car 
port for living accommodation is a much better use of the space; the car port is narrow 
and the hardstanding to the front of the house is used for parking 2 (and sometimes 3 
cars) and therefore parking under the car port is not necessary. Very little natural light 
comes through to the adjacent bungalow via the car port given the orientation of the 
property and the existing fence. A construction method has been sought and any 
building work will not be intrusive to neighbours. The side windows facing no.11 will be 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 39



 

 
 

inward opening and obscure glazed but can be non-opening if necessary. Bins can be 
wheeled through the side extension to the rear of the property alternatively a bin store to 
the front can also be provided. Neighbours have been informed of their intentions to 
extend and have been supportive. 

CONSULTATIONS 
 
None. 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

One letter of objection and one letter of support have been received.  
 
The letter of objection is from the occupiers of the adjacent bungalow (no.11 Campbell 
Road) on grounds of overbearing, loss of light, visually intrusive, not in keeping with the 
street scene and concerns regarding construction given it would be on the boundary 
with their property. Also, understand that what is proposed was refused on the original 
application for the existing extensions; concerns that the applicant is a Council 
employee and this may carry beneficial weight. 
 
The letter of support is from the occupiers of the house diagonally opposite the 
application property (no.2 Campbell Road) on the grounds that the proposed extensions 
will greatly improve the appearance of the dwelling which has an existing unsightly 
extension, in addition to improving the living space for the owners.   

OBSERVATIONS 
 
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
1. The proposed development is for extensions and alterations to an existing dwelling 

within a residential area and therefore the principle of development is acceptable. 
 
IMPACT ON STREET SCENE 
 
2. Policy L7 of Trafford’s Core Strategy and SPD4 refer to proposals not having a 

detrimental impact on the character of the area and more specifically the need to 
retain spaciousness around properties (the SPD4 guidelines suggest that a 1m 
wide gap should be retained between a two storey extension and the side common 
boundary with the neighbouring property). However, the existing side extension at 
the application property, comprising a car port with living accommodation above 
(which was granted planning permission in 1993), has already resulted in the 
infilling of this gap. As such, the proposed ground floor extension to infill the 
existing car port would not have any significant additional impact on the 
spaciousness of the area and would represent an improvement in design terms. 
The proposed development would therefore be acceptable in terms of visual 
amenity.   

 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 40



 

 
 

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
3. The main issue to consider in the determination of this application with regard to 

residential amenity is the impact of the proposal on the adjacent bungalow (no.11). 
The adjacent bungalow has a door, an obscure glazed window and a kitchen 
window in its side (north-east) elevation - facing the application property. As such, 
the kitchen window would be at a distance of only 2.5m from the side facing wall of 
the proposed ground floor extension. The recommended guideline in SPD4 is that 
a separating distance of 15m should be retained between habitable room windows 
and blank gable walls. However, it is considered that the proposed extension, as it 
is simply filling in an existing car port within a two storey extension, would have 
very limited additional impact on the side kitchen window of no.11 over and above 
that of the existing two storey extension, Furthermore, this kitchen also gains light 
from another window on its rear elevation. As such, it is considered that the current 
proposal would not have a significantly detrimental impact on the residential 
amenity of no.11. It should also be noted that the condition requiring planning 
permission to be granted for future conversion of the car port was imposed on the 
grounds of highway safety, not residential amenity. 

 
4. The side elevation of the proposed ground floor side extension (facing no.11) has 

three high-level, obscure glazed windows. Given the close proximity of these 
windows to the adjacent bungalow and its kitchen window, in the interests of 
residential amenity it is recommended that, should planning permission be 
granted, these windows should be conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-
opening.  

 
PARKING 
 
5. The proposal does not require any additional parking spaces however, the infilling 

of the car port would result in the loss of a potential parking space. As the former 
front garden is now laid to hardstanding this can accommodate two vehicle parking 
spaces, which is sufficient for a three bedroomed property according to the 
Council’s SPD3 standards. 

 
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
6. As the additional floorspace of the proposal is below 100 sq.m. this proposal is not 

CIL liable. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
7. The proposal is acceptable in principle; would be in keeping with the street scene 

– (particularly given the design of the existing side extension at the property) and 
would not have a significant detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the 
adjacent dwelling, no.11 Campbell Road. The proposed development would 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 41



 

 
 

therefore comply with Policies L7 and L4 of the Trafford Core Strategy and 
guidance in the NPPF and is therefore recommended for approval. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
GRANT subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 

of this permission.  
 
Reason: Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 

accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers AB/DP 
PR01_001 and AB/DP PR01_002. 
 
Reason: To clarify the permission, having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core 
Strategy. 
 

3. The materials used in any exterior work must be of a similar appearance to those 
used in the construction of the exterior of the existing building. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual 
amenity in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the Council's 
adopted Supplementary Planning Document 4: A Guide for Designing House 
Extensions and Alterations and the requirements of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any equivalent Order following 
the amendment, re-enactment or revocation thereof) upon first installation the 
windows in the ground floor on the side elevation facing no.11 Campbell Road shall 
be fitted with non-opening lights and textured glass which obscuration level is no 
less than Level 3 of the Pilkington Glass scale (or equivalent) and retained as such 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interest of amenity and in compliance with Policy L7 of the Trafford 
Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

AC 
 
 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 42



E

2

9

7

3

1 4

W
A

SH
W

AY
 R

O
A

D

15

18

10

12

13

14

27

17

23

24
0

23
3

25
2

22
1

23
5

ESS

RAGLAN ROAD

24.9m

1 to 12

House

S
A

L
E

 H
E

Y
S

 R
O

A
D

2

9

R
O

M
A

N
 R

O
A

D

C
R

C
A

M
PB

EL
L 

R
O

A
D

43

Gainsborough

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

87818/HHA/16

13 Campbell Road, Sale (site hatched on plan)

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

Planning Service
Committee date 12/05/2016

Trafford Council

28/04/2016

100023172 (2012)

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 43



 
 

WARD: Priory 
 

87954/FUL/16 DEPARTURE: No 

 

Erection of a new raised timber deck on land adjoining the existing public 
house to create an outdoor seating area. Erection of awning. 

 
11 - 13 School Road, Sale, M33 7XY 
 
APPLICANT:  Stonegate Pub Company 
AGENT:  Pembrook Design Ltd 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT  
 
 
 
The application has been called in to be determined by the Planning Committee 
by Councillor Brotherton on the grounds that the proposal would be detrimental 
to the street scene. 
 
SITE 
 
The application site relates to a triangular-shaped piece of land that forms part of an 
open grassed area and a small part of the footway, between the side elevation of the 
public house (the ‘Block & Gasket’) and the corner of Springfield Road. The site is 
located within Sale town centre, at the eastern end of the pedestrianised high street. 
The land is within Council ownership. The side elevation of the public house has five 
large window openings with glazed doors. Directly south of the application site lies the 
remainder of the open grassed area, including trees. 
 
The public house is a part two-storey, part single-storey building with a basement, is 
brick built with a pitched roof over with a rear single-storey flat roof extension finished in 
painted render. The main entrance fronts School Road. The premises are located at the 
end of a row of six properties (all restaurant/takeaway uses) that front onto this section 
of School Road. The ground level falls away from the School Road frontage so that the 
ground level at the rear (south) of the site is lower. 
 
To the rear of this area of land, an access road leads to a vehicle maintenance garage 
with associated parking. On the opposite side of this access road is a two-storey 
building, which was formerly used as the caretaker’s house in connection with 
Springfield Primary School but is now in office use. The main ‘Springfield Primary 
School’ buildings and playground are located on the other side of this office building.   
  
The application site is within a predominantly commercial area, within Sale town centre. 
To the west of the site, on the opposite side of Springfield Road, lies a bank and 
associated offices. To the north, on the opposite side of School Road, lies Sale Town 
Hall.  

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 44



 
 

 
There is a pedestrian crossing on the corner of School Road and Springfield Road and 
pedestrian guard rails adjacent to the road on either side. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The application proposes the erection of an area of raised timber decking along part of 
the side (west) elevation of the ‘Block & Gasket’ public house to create an outdoor 
seating area that would be used in connection with the public house. The proposed 
rectangular-shaped decking area would measure 9m in length and 3m in width.  The 
front of the decking area would be set back 5.5m from the front elevation of the building. 
The decking would be slightly lower (0.3m) than the internal floor level of the building 
and would allow access from the existing public house via one of the two existing 
glazed openings (the other is to be screwed shut into the frame). The timber decking 
would be surrounded by a timber balustrade 1m in height. The decking would be 
supported by a timber framework ranging from of 0.8m to 1.3m in height (due to the fall 
in ground levels). The overall height of the structure at its lowest point would be 1.8m 
closest to the School Road frontage; and 2.3m at its highest point when viewed from the 
Springfield Road approach. All timber would be stained or painted in a finish similar to 
the building. 
 
The proposal incorporates evergreen planting on all three elevations of the proposed 
decking at a height to provide full screening of the supporting timber framework and 
partial screening of the balustrade to the decking. On the south elevation there would be 
a close gap trellis fence at the rear of the deck to provide a climbing structure for high 
level evergreen planting.  
 
The application also proposes a new retractable canvas awning (incorporating 
advertisements) across the proposed new decking area, measuring 8.8m in length and 
projecting 3m from the side wall of the public house. The applicant states that the 
proposed hours of use of the decking area would be the same as the opening hours of 
the main bar, which are currently 8am to 11pm on Monday to Wednesday, 8am to 12pm 
on Thursday, 8am to 2.00am on Friday, 10am to 2am on Saturday and 10am to 11pm 
on Sunday. 
 
Value Added 
 
Following the withdrawal of application ref. 86884/FUL/15 in January 2016, for a similar 
proposal, the current application has been submitted in an attempt to address the 
concerns of officers. Through discussions with the applicant’s agent the proposed 
development has been improved by the lowering of the decking area and the 
introduction of evergreen planting on all elevations.  
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
For the purposes of this report, the Development Plan in Trafford Comprises: 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 45



 
 

 
• The Trafford Core Strategy, adopted 25th January 2012; The Trafford Core 

Strategy is the first of Trafford’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
development plan documents to be adopted by the Council; it partially supersedes 
the Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), see Appendix 5 of the Core 
Strategy. 

• The Revised Trafford Unitary Development Plan (UDP), adopted 19th June 
2006; The majority of the policies contained in the Revised Trafford UDP were 
saved in either September 2007 or December 2008, in accordance with the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 until such time that they are 
superseded by policies within the (LDF). Appendix 5 of the Trafford Core Strategy 
provides details as to how the Revised UDP is being replaced by Trafford LDF.  

 
PRINCIPAL RELEVANT CORE STRATEGY POLICIES 
W2 – Town Centre and Retail 
L4 – Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
L7 - Design 
 
PROPOSALS MAP NOTATION 
Sale Town Centre 
Main Office Development Area 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) 
 
The DCLG published the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 
2012. The NPPF will be referred to as appropriate in the report. 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE (NPPG) 
 
DCLG published the National Planning Practice Guidance on 6 March 2014, which 
replaced a number of practice guidance documents. The NPPG will be referred to as 
appropriate in the report. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
86884/FUL/15 – Erection of a new raised timber deck on land adjoining the existing 
public house to create an outdoor seating area. Erection of awning. Application 
withdrawn January 2016. 
 
H/67340 – Change of use to form outdoor seating area in connection with adjacent 
public house and erection of external decking and balustrade. Application submitted in 
2007. Withdrawn 
 
H/49959 – Change of use of shop and residential flat to public house, erection of two 
storey rear extension to form covered service area and bar area, erection of rear fire 
escape, external alterations to School Road and Springfield Road frontages and 
erection of new roof at rear – Approved – 12th October 2000 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 46



 
 

 
APPLICANT’S SUBMISSION 
 
The proposed new raised timber deck is to provide an external seating area for use by 
customers of The Block and Gasket public house.  
 
The new deck is a traditional style timber design and benefits from a planting buffer and 
high level screening to the open sides to help screen it from view and diminish the 
overall visual impact from the street. To be sympathetic to the existing site levels the 
deck level is set lower than the public house floor level. Ramp access is provided from 
the public house. The deck is narrow in plan to reduce the impact on the adjacent public 
open space.  

CONSULTATIONS 
 
Pollution & Licensing – No objection. The flats above the shops on School Road are 
in a town centre environment and are already exposed to noise from people frequenting 
the pubs and restaurants in that locality.  Recommend a curfew of 23.00 hours for the 
use of the proposed outdoor seating area. Also suggest a condition be attached to 
prohibit the playing of music, both amplified and live, on the outdoor seating area, at any 
time (other than that which might be approved under a Temporary Event Notice – 
Licensing Act 2003).  
 
LHA – No objections. The proposed deck and associated landscaping must not extend 
onto the adopted highway. All excavation for decking foundations are to be adequately 
supported to prevent damage or undermining of the adjacent highway. 
 
GM Police - Design for Security– No objection however, recommend that; all tables 
should be fitted with property clips, tables and chairs should be removed from the 
decked area and securely stored inside out of hours, tables should be cleaned regularly 
and waste bins should be provided to deter littering. The success of this proposal will 
depend on the management of the premises, especially at peak times. Staff should 
monitor customer behaviour and ensure that the tables and chairs remain on the 
proposed decked area 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority – Any comments to be reported in the Additional 
Information Report. 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Two objections (including one from the Ward Councillors and one from a parent 
governor of Springfield Primary School) have been received, making the following 
comments: -  
 
- The raised deck (on land currently owned by TMBC Highways) would be in a very 

prominent position at the junction of School Road and Springfield Road. This is an 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 47



 
 

inappropriate location and will be detrimental to the street scene of Sale Town 
Centre.   

- Safeguarding issue - the school playground will be in direct view of the patrons of 
the pub via the raised deck. 

- The pedestrian walkway between the corner of the pub and the pedestrian crossing 
is limited and will therefore affect all pedestrians at peak times. 

- Increased traffic from increased patronage poses a risk to members of the public eg 
deliveries already causing congestion which is a risk to pedestrians. 

- Social and moral conduct by patrons displayed to passing children. 
- Smoking by patrons on the decking will pose a health risk to the public. 
- Loss of a mature tree. 

OBSERVATIONS 
 
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
1. Policy W2.4 of the Core Strategy states that within Sale Town Centre there will be 

a focus on the consolidation and improvement of the convenience and comparison 
retail offer, with the potential to strengthen and enhance the retail offer where 
suitable, as well as diversification to other uses such as offices, services, leisure, 
cultural and residential, as appropriate. The proposed extension of the public 
house to create an outdoor seating area is considered to be an appropriate use 
within this town centre location and as such is acceptable in principle and therefore 
there are no objections in policy terms to the proposed development. 

 
DESIGN AND VISUAL AMENITY 
 
2. The proposed decking area would be sited in a prominent location on the corner of 

a main road within the town centre. The application site currently comprises part of 
an open grassed area; land to the south of the site comprises the remainder of this 
open grassed area with a small group of trees that are considered to enhance the 
visual amenity of the area. 

 
3. It is worth noting that a previous application (H/67340 - also for raised decking to 

provide outdoor seating) proposed decking at 3m in width, 22m in length and 4m 
high at its highest. That application has now been withdrawn. Also, the recently 
withdrawn application for outdoor decking (ref. 86884/FUL/15) proposed decking 
at its widest point to 6.5m, at its highest to 1.7m and further forward towards the 
front elevation of the public house. The proposed decking in the current application 
would be set back from the main front elevation of the public house, project 3m in 
width, 9m in length and would be between 1.8m and 2.3m in height. Therefore, the 
decking would be in a less prominent location and is considerably reduced in 
width, length and height in comparison to the previously proposed schemes. 

 
4. The proposed timber decking, balustrade and supporting timber framework are 

considered to be of an appropriate design and would be largely screened by the 
proposed evergreen planting on all three elevations. The proposal would be 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 48



 
 

viewed against the existing building, close to a busy road junction and partially 
screened by the existing trees on the land to the south. Therefore, it is considered 
the proposed decking would not have an unduly detrimental impact on the street 
scene when viewed from School Road and Springfield Road. 

 
5. In conclusion, given the revised location, size and design of the proposed decking, 

also given the proposed planting of mature evergreen landscaping around the 
decking, it is considered that, subject to the details of colour and surface finish of 
the materials and a detailed landscaping scheme, the design and visual 
appearance of the proposed structure would be acceptable in the street scene and 
as such would comply with Policy L7 of the Core Strategy.   

 
IMPACT ON THE AMENITY OF NEARBY PREMISES 
 
6. With regard to the impact of potential noise and disturbance from the proposed 

development on the surrounding premises, the proposed outdoor seating area is to 
be used in association with the existing public house and as such the hours of use 
will be the same. There are some residential flats in the vicinity of the application 
site however, this is an existing public house within a town centre location and 
there has been no objection raised to the proposal by Pollution and Licensing, 
subject to an hours of use condition limiting the use of the outdoor seating area to 
no later than 2300 and a condition to prohibit the playing of music (both amplified 
and live) in the outdoor area at any time unless a Temporary Event Notice is 
granted. 

 
7. The closest building to the application site is no.9 Springfield Road, which was the 

former caretaker’s house in connection with Springfield Primary School but is now 
in use as offices. This building is positioned on the opposite side of the access 
road that runs to the rear of the Block & Gasket public house and has two 
secondary windows on the side elevation facing the application site. Springfield 
Primary School and its associated playground lie to the rear of the site and only 
the uppermost part of the windows would be visible to the patrons of the public 
house using the outdoor seating area at a distance of 40 metres, the lower part of 
the windows and the playground would not be visible due to a separating (1.6m 
high) fence along the access boundary to the rear and the offices at no.9. The 
proposed decking would be screened from the school by the building at number 9, 
particularly as the decking would not run the whole length of the side elevation of 
the public house. It is considered that there could be some limited additional noise 
and disturbance as a result of the use of the proposed decking area. However, the 
background noise levels during daytime hours are already likely to be relatively 
high in this location, given the proximity of the adjacent main roads and the 
existing parking and servicing area at the rear of the commercial premises. In 
addition, it is considered that the proposed decking area is likely to be used more 
intensively during the evenings and weekends when the adjacent offices and 
school would not be in use. It is therefore considered that the proposed 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 49



 
 

development is not likely to cause a serious level of noise and disturbance to the 
occupiers of these adjacent buildings. 

 
8. It is recognised that the proposed development is in close proximity to a primary 

school and, for this reason, there may be some concerns that an outdoor drinking 
area would be inappropriate in this location. However, the application site is 
located within the town centre where such uses would normally be expected and 
the issue of whether a public house use was appropriate in such a location was 
considered at the time of the original planning permission H/49959. In addition, the 
applicant has proposed a 1.8m high close gap trellis at the rear of the deck (along 
the southern elevation) to provide a climbing structure for high level evergreen 
planting (2.7m in total height), in order to screen the proposed outdoor seating 
area from the view of the school. 

 
9. Given the above and given it is considered that the most intensive use of the 

outdoor seating area is likely to occur outside of school opening times and during 
the summer months, it is considered that this issue would not justify a refusal of 
the application. As such, the proposal complies with Policy L7 of Trafford’s Core 
Strategy. 

 
TRAFFIC AND CAR PARKING 
 
10. Whilst the development would involve the creation of a small amount of additional 

public floor space, the site is located within the town centre, where there are public 
car parks and public transport facilities in close proximity. The footway would be 
retained for pedestrians. The LHA do not object to the proposal, on the condition 
that the decking and landscaping should not extend onto the public highway. The 
submitted drawing currently indicates that a small amount of proposed planting 
may extend onto the highway. The details of the proposed planting would be 
controlled through a landscaping condition and it is considered that this issue can 
be addressed through the condition. It is therefore considered that the proposed 
development is acceptable in highway terms. 

 
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
11. This proposal is not subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as it is not 

considered floorspace for the purposes of calculating a CIL charge.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
12. In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed outdoor seating area, in 

association with the existing public house, is appropriate in principle in this town 
centre location. It is also considered that, subject to appropriate conditions, the 
proposed decking area would not have a significant detrimental impact on the 
visual appearance of the area and would not lead to significant noise and 
disturbance to the occupiers of nearby properties or premises. As such the 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 50



 
 

proposal complies with the NPPF and Policies W2, L4 and L7 of Trafford’s Core 
Strategy and is therefore recommended for approval. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission. 
 
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 2914-100 
Rev.B and 2914/71 Rev.E and 2914/73.  
  
Reason: To clarify the permission, having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core 
Strategy. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the details submitted, no development shall take place until 
samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the outdoor seating 
area, including the colour and finish of the timber posts, rails and framework have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory external appearance in the interests of visual 
amenity, having regard to Policy L7 of the Trafford Core Strategy. 
 

4. a) Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the development 
hereby permitted shall not be occupied until full details of both hard and soft 
landscaping works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The details shall include the formation of any banks, terraces 
or other earthworks, hard surfaced areas and materials, planting plans, 
specifications and schedules (including planting size, species and 
numbers/densities), existing plants / trees to be retained and a scheme for the 
timing / phasing of implementation works. 
(b) The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scheme for timing / phasing of implementation or within the next planting season 
following final occupation of the development hereby permitted, whichever is the 
sooner. 
(c) Any trees or shrubs planted or retained in accordance with this condition 
which are removed, uprooted, destroyed, die or become severely damaged or 
become seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall be replaced within the 
next planting season by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those 
originally required to be planted. 

 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 51



 
 

Reason:  To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its 
location and the nature of the proposed development and in accordance with 
Policies L7, R2 and R3 of the Trafford Core Strategy and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
5. The outdoor seating area hereby permitted shall only be open for use by patrons 

of the public house between the hours of 08.00 and 23.00 hours on any day. 
 
Reason: In the interest of amenity in accordance with Policy L7 of the Trafford 
Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

      6. No amplified or other music shall be played on the outdoor seating area at any 
time.  

 
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity and in compliance with Policy L7 of 
the Trafford Core Strategy. 

 
 

AC 
 
 
 

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 52



F

E

FF
FF
FF
FF
FF
FF
FF

2

1

9

5

3

Sale

Springfield
Primary School

W
or

ks

SCHOOL ROAD

26

12

44

13

36

15

18

17

29

1 
3

SL

FS

Ps

PH

Sale Bridge

3 
5 

7

Waterside Plaza

(PH)

42 40

ESS

11
 1

3

TA
T

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

TCB

Theatre

Library

11 to 13

King's

Arts Centre
Town Hall

El Sub Sta

War Memorial

1

2

9

9

1

PH

Station

he
 M

al
l

Ransom

Brindley Lo

19

NORTHENDEN

27.0

CBs

1
15

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

87954/FUL/16

11-13 School Road, Sale (site hatched on plan)

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

Planning Service
Committee date 12/05/2016

Trafford Council

28/04/2016

100023172 (2012)

Planning Committee - 12th May 2016 53



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Planning Development Control Committee
Date: 12 May 2016
Report for: Information
Report of: Head of Strategic Growth

Report Title

Section 106 and CIL Update: October 2015 – March 2016

Summary

This report is to inform Planning Development Control Committee about the latest 
set of monitoring data for S106 agreements and CIL notices.

Recommendation 

That Planning and Development Control Committee note the contents of this report.
 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Clare Taylor-Russell
Extension: 4496

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was created under the terms of the 

Planning Act 2008, and established a new system for collecting developer 
contributions, charged on a pounds (£) per square metre basis, to fund essential 
infrastructure. Trafford’s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was implemented on 
07 July 2014. 

1.2 Although the mechanism for securing contributions to deliver infrastructure to 
support growth has changed, there remains a large number of existing signed 
Section 106 agreements (S106) that require on-going monitoring. Going forwards, 
although the number of new legal agreements will be reduced, S106s will continue 
to be used to secure site-specific mitigation and the provision of affordable 
housing. 

1.3 This report details S106 and CIL activities over the period 01 April 2015 to 31 
March 2016, together with contextual and historic information.

Agenda Item 5



2.0 S106 update
2.1 S106 legal agreements involve lengthy negotiations between planning case 

officers and developers, often involving complex viability issues or land transfers, 
on top of the more usual planning considerations such as heritage, highways or 
amenity issues. Contributions have historically been secured to deliver a variety of 
infrastructure, including:
 affordable housing
 highways and active travel
 public transport
 specific green infrastructure (Red Rose Forest)
 spatial green infrastructure (open space / outdoor sports)
 education facilities 

2.2 The amount of S106 contributions received to date and the amounts spent or 
committed to schemes is summarised in table 1 below. The financial year end 
figures are based on the draft outturn position for 2015/16 which is a provisional 
position, so figures may be subject to small changes. The final figures will be 
reported on in due course.

2.3 Overall contributions of around £19.5m have been received to date. Of this, £7.6m 
has been spent, and circa £4.3m is committed to schemes in the Capital 
Investment Programme. Of the balance available, approximately £3.6m has been 
earmarked to delivering the Metrolink expansion, and feasibility work is ongoing to 
commit the remainder to appropriate infrastructure projects in line with the 
requirements of the legal agreements. 

Table 1: S106 contributions received and committed to spend
 Open 

Space/ 
Outdoor 

Sports
  £000

Education

 
£000

Red 
Rose 

Forest

£000

Affordable 
Housing

 £000

Highways

  £000

Public 
Transport

£000

Total

      
£000

Amounts 
Received

      

Pre 2012 2,699 0 359 1,224 2,621 3,878 10,781
2012/13 358 101 143 534 326 718 2,180
2013/14 407 22 40  0 1,059 374 1,902
2014/15 212 63 95 0 1,695 1,000 3,065

2015/16 197 229 271 284 130 413 1,524

Total Received 3,873 415 908 2,042 5,831 6,383 19,452
        

Amounts 
Applied

       

Less Already 
used

(2,678) (32) (296) (984) (2,398) (1,170) (7,558)

Less Committed (804) (220) (12) (108) (1,602) (1530) (4276)
Balance 
Available

391 163 600 950 1831 3683 7618

2.4 It should be noted that prior to February 2012, there was no requirement for 
contributions to be secured to support the provision of education facilities, this was 
introduced with the adoption of a new Supplementary Planning Document on 
Planning Obligations at the time (SPD1).



2.5 SPD1 was further revised and adopted in July 2014 to support the introduction of 
CIL. SPD1 (2014) provides greater clarity for when the use of S106 legal 
agreements will be appropriate to mitigate the negative impacts of development, 
as there should be no circumstances where a developer is paying CIL and S106 
for the same infrastructure in relation to the same development

2.6 In addition to the figures set out in table 2, there are a number of outstanding s106 
agreements; as of April 2016 these amount to £31m, of which around £17m is 
related to Barton Square. Caution is advised when considering these figures as 
there is no guarantee that developments which have planning permission will 
definitely come forwards. However, there will continue to be an on-going need to 
monitor those developments, especially the larger schemes, as these typically 
have complex trigger points which are linked to the various phases of 
implementation, which can take several years to deliver.  

3.0 Community Infrastructure Levy update
3.1 Between the introduction of Trafford’s CIL on 07 July 2014 and 31 March 2016, 

CIL Liability Notices to the value of £3m have been issued for around 85 
developments. CIL monies only become due after a development commences, so 
predictions about future income should be mindful of the fact that some planning 
consents never go on to be implemented.

3.2 The Council is now starting to see an increase in the amount of CIL monies 
coming in, as recently approved developments begin on site. Actual CIL monies 
received to date total £302k, and a breakdown of what these receipts can be 
applied to is shown in table 2 below. 

Table 2: CIL monies received

 Total Monies Received Admin slice Local slice Strategic slice

07-Jul-14 to 
31-Mar-15  £5,060.00  £253.00  £759.00  £4,048.00 

01-Apr-15 to 
31-Mar-16 £297,370.23 £14,868.51 £43,541.06 £238,960.66

Total £302,430.23 £15,121.51 £44,300.06 £243,008.66

3.3 A document is currently being prepared that sets down the process for spending 
CIL monies, describing the protocol for engaging with communities on how the 
local slice will be spent, and providing further details on the statutory requirements 
for spending the strategic slice of CIL receipts. 

4.0 Recommendation
4.1 That Planning and Development Control Committee note the contents of this 

report.



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD: Altrincham 87009/FULL/2015 
 

PROPOSED STOPPING UP OF HIGHWAY AT FOOTWAY ADJACENT TO THE 
FORMER ALTRINCHAM GENERAL HOSPITAL AT ALTRINCHAM, TRAFFORD, 
WA14 1PE 
OS GRID REFERENCE:     E:376649, N:387868 
 
Highway proposed to be stopped up under S247 of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990 to enable development to be carried out in accordance with planning 
permission applied for under reference 87009/FULL/2015. 

 
APPLICANT: Citybranch Limited 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  THAT NO OBJECTION BE RAISED 
 
 
 
SITE 
Development proposals by Citybranch Limited. 

PROPOSAL 
The Department for Transport has advised the Council (the Local Highway Authority for 
the area of highway referred to and therefore a statutory consultee) of an application 
made to the Secretary of State for Transport under S247 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990 to stop up an area of highway in Altrincham described below in the 
Schedule and shown on the applicant’s plan (copy attached). 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
The stopping up, if approved, will be authorised only in order to enable the development 
to be carried out in accordance with the planning permission applied for to the Council 
under reference 87009/FULL/2015. 

THE SCHEDULE 
Description of highways to be stopped up; 
The highways to be stopped up are at Market Street, Altrincham, shown on Plan 1 as: 
1. A length of Market Street, including part of its eastern footway. Commencing at the 

junction of Pott Street, it extends in a general south westerly direction for a maximum 
distance of 16.71 metres. It has a maximum width of 3.69 metres. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The recommendation is that the Committee consider raising no objection to this 
application for stopping up the area of highway described in the Schedule and shown on 
the attached plan. 
 

Agenda Item 6




	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	4 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION TO DEVELOP ETC.
	Agenda Item 4 - Applications for permission to develop etc
	86854D
	86854P
	87573D
	87573P
	87720D
	87720P
	87733D
	87733P
	87818D
	87818P
	87954D
	87954P


	5 SECTION 106 AND CIL UPDATE: OCTOBER 2015 - MARCH 2016
	6 PROPOSED STOPPING UP OF HIGHWAY AT FOOTWAY ADJACENT TO THE FORMER ALTRINCHAM GENERAL HOSPITAL AT ALTRINCHAM WA14 1PE
	REPORT Market Street April 2016
	Highway proposed to be stopped up under S247 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 to enable development to be carried out in accordance with planning permission applied for under reference 87009/FULL/2015.
	RECOMMENDATION:  THAT NO OBJECTION BE RAISED

	USITE
	UPROPOSAL
	RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY


	160422-AMENDED Stopping up plan




